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Episode 1

Season 1
Episode Number: 1
Season Episode: 1

Originally aired: Sunday August 29, 2021
Writer: Tom Edge
Director: James Strong
Show Stars: Suranne Jones (DCI Amy Silva), Rose Leslie (DC Kirsten Longacre),

Shaun Evans (Chief Petty Officer Elliot Glover), Anjli Mohindra (Lieu-
tenant Tiffany Docherty), Martin Compston (Chief Petty Officer Craig
Burke), Paterson Joseph (Captain Newsome), Connor Swindells (Lieu-
tenant Hadlow), Adam James (Commander Mark Prentice), Gary
Lewis (Superintendent Robertson), Lauren Lyle (Jade Antoniak), Lolita
Chakrabarti (Lieutenant Commander Erin Branning), Cal MacAninch
(Ben Oakley), Lorne MacFadyen (Chief Petty Officer Michael Doward),
Daniel Portman (Gary Walsh), Stephen Dillane (Rear Admiral Shaw)

Guest Stars: Anita Vettesse (Jackie Hamilton), Cristian Ortega (Anderton), Bobby
Rainsbury (Heather Cronin), Lois Chimimba (CPO Tara Kierly), Orla
Russell (Poppy), Tom Gill (Chief Petty Officer Adams), Oliver Lans-
ley (Mark Hill), Jim Sturgeon (Iain), Aisha Toussaint (Cat), Thierry
Mabonga (Aircrew Officer), Peter Guiney (Trawlerman), Thoren Fer-
guson (Bretton), Matt Costello (Skipper), Rian Gordon (Wilson), Xavier
Lake (Trawlerman)

Summary: When a crew member is found dead aboard the Trident nuclear sub-
marine HMS Vigil, DCI Amy Silva is flown out to investigate.

As the episode begins, we see a boat out
in the water near Scotland. Louis and the
others on the ship joke about tattoos be-
fore one of them notices something on the
radar. Their net gets snagged on some-
thing causing the boat to be pulled and
the men crash to the deck. The boat be-
gins taking water so the men onboard
rush to cut the wire and free it. Un-
der the water, we see the HMS Vigil and
the crewmembers. They continue as if
nothing is happening while the men on
the ship above desperately fight for their

lives. On Vigil, CPO Craig Burke notices something and gets permission from Captain Newsome
to put it on the loudspeaker. They realize it is a trawler and Burke wonders if they should go
above. Although the Captain says otherwise, Burke believes they should go up and help since
they wouldn’t have time to radio for help.

Another man is brought in to get Burke out of there. CPO Tara Keirly makes fun of Burke as
he is led out and she comes in to take over for him. Above, the boat is completely submerged, and
Burke is told to go to his bunk. After the intro, Tara Kierly is told to head to the captain’s quarters.
She tells the Captain what evidence they have regarding the sinking. When another man enters,
the Captain confirms he wants Burke on this as well. They call for a doctor because someone
on the ship has gone into a cardiac arrest. They work on Craig, but the paramedic believes he
could be a goner. The body is hauled away as the crew members watch and a cafeteria worker
cries. The Captain orders Heather Cronin to prepare to transmit a message. Next, we jump over
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to Glasgow where we see DCI Amy Silva running. She is stopped by a phone call and told she
needs to return right away.

Once she arrives, DSU Colin Robertson tells her she is the only one coming. They step inside
and Robertson quickly introduces Admiral Shaw to Silva who he calls his best detective. They sit
down and Silva learns Shaw is in charge of Britain’s four Vanguard-class submarines with the
nuclear deterrents. HMS Vigil is among those submarines. One of the crewmembers died of an
overdose and it is alleged he snorted heroin. They only know he was found in his bunk. Since
he died in British territorial waters, Silva will be assigned to the case. For 50 years, these boats
have been out in the water and ready to fire within 15 minutes. Vigil isn’t coming back. Instead,
Silva will be going onboard Vigil. She will be there for three days before she will leave on a raft.
She learns the officer’s name was Chief Petty Officer Craig Burke.

She is introduced to Lieutenant Erin Branning who will be the police’s point of contact and
given Burke’s files. The crew has been told to cooperate with the investigation. When Silva asks if
they’ve ever had drug problems on the submarines before, Shaw says they never had an overdose
before. She asks again before Shaw insists there is no drug problem on Vigil. She wants to fly
out Burke’s body at the same time and get an autopsy done. Shaw informs her she won’t be able
to call home so she can’t get in touch with Robertson. She can receive messages but can’t send
them since that would give away the boat’s position. She is given a bag that her luggage must
fit in and quickly realizes they’ve spelled her name wrong. Once that ends, Robertson warns her
they won’t be rolling out the red carpet for her. She insists she’ll be okay since it is only going to
be three days. She already knows Burke passed a mandatory drug test in July and he doesn’t fit
the profile of a drug user.

She wants a junior to speak to his colleagues and friends. She recommends DC Kirsten Lon-
gacre because she needs someone who knows her. Next, we hear a news report about the Trident
missile debate while Kirsten grills Silva about the job. Again, Amy believes everything will be okay
since she’ll only be gone for three days. Amy explains she used to come out there a lot since Iain’s
family lived down the road. She wants Kirsten to find what she can about Burke and any drug
connections. He was also in a fight near the base. Kirsten jokes about sending erotic messages
since they’ll be read by a lot of people before they reach Amy. Silva asks Longacre to stay at her
flat so she can take care of her cat while she is away.

They pass by what appears to be a camp before finding a body in the road. When Amy checks
on the woman in the middle of the road, she pops up and begins complaining about the cost of
the Trident missiles. That leads to a brief argument before Amy leaves. They make it to Dunloch
Naval Base and check in with the guard outside. Branning gives Silva instructions including
removing her phone’s SIM card, but she has already done that. Silva tells Longacre they can
use code by referencing things they’ve done before. Then, she is introduced to Matthew Doward
who will be flying out to replace Burke. Before they separate, Silva says sorry to Kirsten before
being told she can’t say that now. Amy leaves in a plane moments later with Matthew. She learns
Matthew has not served on Vigil, but he knows a few of the people there. He is normally on
Virtue.

He says Virtue is a lot less trouble, but he won’t say why that is the case since he isn’t
supposed to be talking to her. As they fly along, Amy thinks about the past and her family.
They reach the meeting point and Vigil emerges from the water. Amy receives instructions before
being lowered down to the submarine. She climbs down the hatch and nearly slips on her way
down. She is quickly introduced to Commander Prentice who says Coxswain will be with her
shortly. She learns they’re not going to take Burke’s body from the submarine so there will be
no autopsy. CPO Elliot Glover introduces himself to Silva as the submarine sinks further into
the water. She learns Burke’s body in the bomb shop and confirms she wants to examine it. She
is told the submarine is a boat and the ship’s doctor is Tiffany Docherty. They walk past the
nuclear missiles on their way to the bomb shop.

Amy is introduced to Tiffany who agrees to help her. She goes to get her equipment while
Glover tells Amy he is the HR representative on the ship. When Elliot is asked if Burke meant to
kill himself, he shrugs and admits it looks like it. The body is pulled from an uninsulated hold
so it should be in good condition. Tiffany confirms she tried to give him CPR, but he was already
gone. Engineering Officer Hadlow who is new to the ship found him. Tiffany helps as Amy takes
evidence swabs from Burke’s nostrils. Amy asks if he took any other medication before Tiffany
says she gave him a couple of paracetamols about an hour before he died. He claimed to have a
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headache, his pupils were contracted, and there was some spittle around his mouth. Amy finds
bruising and bleeding near the base of his skull, so Glover argues it could’ve happened when
they pulled Burke from his bunk.

When asked, Amy says she did two years of medical school, but it wasn’t for her. She doesn’t
say why. Amy asks them to make sure nobody else can access the body before demanding to see
the captain right away. She sits down with Newsome and admits she thinks Burke was murdered.
They refuse to believe it. She says heroin is normally shot up and not snorted. When it is, it is
usually a finer white powder. Prentice doesn’t want to believe it either. She shows them pictures
and says there is powder around the nostrils but not up in the nose. She thinks it was rubbed
on. Prentice argues people held his nose shut during the CPR and the idea of murder is absurd.
She shows them the injuries on his head and jaw and argues it could’ve caused a delayed brain
hemorrhage. Prentice and Newsome don’t want to believe it since there is no privacy on the ship.

She says the boat is a crime scene and they should return to port so they can launch proper
inquiries. She was promised Newsome’s cooperation, but he says his orders come from the Chiefs
of Staff and the Prime Minister. He informs Amy she will obey his orders while she is onboard
Vigil. He tells her to do her work, stay out of their way, and say nothing about murder. If she
says murder outside of this room, he’ll have her confined to quarters. Meanwhile, Kirsten goes
to Amy’s flat and lets herself in. She finds the cat and realizes it is hungry. Amy asks Glover
about Burke’s fight in the pub, but Glover says it isn’t any of his business because it happened
onshore. He last saw Burke at the end of his watch, but he remembers Adams having a word
with him in the mess. He gave Burke CPR. Amy goes to Burke’s cabin so she can search it.

Another engineer, CPO Gary Walsh, begins cursing when he hears them, but apologizes when
he sees what is going on. Walsh says there is nothing to see since Burke was a druggie and a
crap sailor who should’ve been out of the Navy years ago. Walsh never saw him taking drugs, but
he knows about the overdose and that justifies his statement. They step into the hallway and
Amy admits she doesn’t understand why the Captain doesn’t want her to look into this. Glover
knows she has a headache and explains it is the low-oxygen environment that helps slow down
fires. He takes her to her bunk and tells her to try to get at least four hours of rest. She isn’t
thrilled with how tight her quarters are and this reminds her of the vehicle crash with her family.
Glover goes back to Prentice and Newsome to tell them where Amy is at.

He admits she is clever, and it’ll be hard to keep her contained once she starts talking to
people. Prentice recommends keeping her on a short lead and offers to sit in on the interviews,
but Newsome says Glover can do that. Prentice doesn’t like that, but he is soon told to leave. Once
they’ve alone, Newsome tells Glover to look after her because they cannot afford a scandal. The
young woman who was lying on the ground manages to sneak into the navy base. She is soon
cornered and caught with Burke’s pass card. Tiffany goes to her bunk and finds Amy awake.
Amy tries to take her medication, but it falls n the ground. Tiffany finds it and reminds her she
can’t bring her own meds onboard. Amy admits she is taking the medication for anxiety and
depression, but she’d rather go for a run and a swim.

Tiffany encourages her to come and see her if she is struggling and she wouldn’t be the first to
do so. Back on land, Kirsten interviews the Dunloch base invader Jade Antoniak. She is quickly
asked why she was trying to get into Burke’s room. In her statement, she claims Burke borrowed
a book from her and she went there to get it back. She claims they drank in the same pub, and
she knows about him being dead, but she won’t say who told her. Kirsten tells her she is separate
from the navy and knows how Burke died. She wants to know how he died, but Kirsten wants
to know more about their relationship first. Jade claims he was her boyfriend, but nobody knew
about it. She knows her mates wouldn’t be happy about it and doesn’t believe Burke would’ve
died of an overdose. She insists he wasn’t an addict since they spent every second together. She
believes the navy had him killed if they’re saying he died of a heroin overdose.

Jade tells Kirsten about Mhairi Finnea who went missing as well and argues it was a cover-up
since this is what the navy does when they have a problem. Jade is given permission to leave,
and she does so in a hurry. Outside, Kirsten snaps a picture of the license plate Jade leaves in
before learning about the other incident. Glover takes Adam to Amy so she can interview, but
she is busy eating. Adams seems in a hurry and confirms he last saw Adams in the cafeteria
but can’t remember when exactly. He thinks it was around 13:10 since they did the same watch
pattern. He thinks Craig was a bit off and Hadders or Hadlow saw him on 4 deck and asks about
him. Then, Adams confirms he last saw Burke when trying to help resuscitate home. He went to
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help since he was sleeping in the bunk space nearby. After that conversation ends, she goes to
Hadlow and asks him about seeing Burke on this deck.

He doesn’t remember asking Adams how Burke seemed or anything like that. Hadlow believes
he saw Craig around 12:30 since it was roughly half an hour before the change of watch. He didn’t
know Burke well, but he was off watch and hanging around. He explains people do that down
there. He was wearing a green fleece and he shows her exactly where Burke was standing. She
gets the lights dimmed and uses luminol to look for bloodstains where Burke had been standings.
Sure enough, she finds small patches of blood on the ground and quickly asks Hadlow if he saw
anyone else with Burke. He won’t say right now. He is asked about finding the body and admits
he pulled the curtain back when he entered Craig’s bunk. Amy doesn’t understand that since
sleep is so precious down then. Hadlow gets blunt with her and encourages her to write down
questions so he can get back to her later.

She isn’t willing to let him go until he tells her why he went to see Craig Burke. He doesn’t
cooperate and Elliot admits he can’t stop Hadlow from leaving. Next, Officer Kierly lets the captain
and others listen to the audio of what could be a sinking ship. Doward argues otherwise, but
Tara is sure it is a trawler being pulled down by a sub. Newsome says they should message CTF
because they need to identify the boat. Amy goes to Newsome and tells him about the blood and
the fact at least one crew member has a history of violence involving Burke. She wants to call
his superiors, but Newsome isn’t willing to do so. She asks if anything odd happened that day
and why they were on silent routine. Newsome tells her to write her report and they’ll send it
although Prentice doesn’t believe that is a good idea. Shaw learns about the report, but he says
it doesn’t exist until the Chiefs of Staff say it does.

He complains about the Vigil and insists there will be serious changes on there when it
returns. Kirsten returns to the base so she can send a message to Amy and check Burke’s
accommodation. Branning takes her to his room before she is asked to wait outside. Branning
agrees to wait outside. Kirsten searches the room while Amy receives her message. Amy reads
the secret message and remembers spending intimate time with Kirsten. Silva tracks down Kierly
and asks about Burke and the sinking, but Tara says she wasn’t there. When Amy learns she
replaced Craig mid-watch, she wants to know why. Kirsten finds a USB drive hiding in a metal
chair before Branning barges in and interrupts. Branning notices something on the ground when
Kirsten leaves. Amy learns about the trawler sinking and decides to ask the captain about it. He
invites her in and is quickly asked why Burke was dismissed after they hit the fishing trawler.

They sit down before the captain says they didn’t hit anyone, but another sub did. He claims
someone sitting right behind them did, and she is looking for someone who might’ve had a punch-
up. He insists they had an enemy submarine tracking them although that shouldn’t be possible.
He goes on to say the nuclear deterrence works because you have viable weapons, the enemy
can’t stop you, and the enemy doesn’t know if you’ll ever use them. He admits it is very bad if
they’ve been shadowed by an enemy submarine. Craig wanted to go up to look for survivors, but
Newsome believes he made the right decision by remaining underwater. He says it is an illusion
that they’re not at war because they’ve always been at war. The sirens begin sounding and they
learn that the reactor has scrammed. Amy desperately tries to find out what is going on while
Kirsten finds a video file on the USB drive. She opens the file and watches as Burkes talks about
the 20 different ways you could kill Vigil’s crew.

She shuts the computer and drives away. Burke goes on to say nobody talks about it. He talks
about the corruption, fear, and the men who’ve been killed. Kirsten is stopped at the gate while
Craig says someone came after him and they’ll do it again. Newsome learns they’ve experienced
a complete reactor shutdown and they don’t know what happened. Craig says they’ve left him
dead until two miles of water and he has things to tell them.
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Episode 2

Season 1
Episode Number: 2
Season Episode: 2

Originally aired: Monday August 30, 2021
Writer: Tom Edge
Director: James Strong
Show Stars: Suranne Jones (DCI Amy Silva), Rose Leslie (DC Kirsten Longacre),

Shaun Evans (Chief Petty Officer Elliot Glover), Anjli Mohindra (Lieu-
tenant Tiffany Docherty), Martin Compston (Chief Petty Officer Craig
Burke), Paterson Joseph (Captain Newsome), Connor Swindells (Lieu-
tenant Hadlow), Adam James (Commander Mark Prentice), Gary
Lewis (Superintendent Robertson), Lauren Lyle (Jade Antoniak), Lolita
Chakrabarti (Lieutenant Commander Erin Branning), Cal MacAninch
(Ben Oakley), Lorne MacFadyen (Chief Petty Officer Michael Doward),
Daniel Portman (Gary Walsh), Stephen Dillane (Rear Admiral Shaw)

Guest Stars: Anita Vettesse (Jackie Hamilton), Cristian Ortega (Anderton), Bobby
Rainsbury (Heather Cronin), Lois Chimimba (CPO Tara Kierly), Orla
Russell (Poppy), Tom Gill (Chief Petty Officer Adams), Jim Sturgeon
(Iain), Aisha Toussaint (Cat), Reuben Joseph (Porter)

Summary: With Vigil in danger, Amy must fight to continue her investigation.
Meanwhile, Kirsten’s enquiries lead to tragedy.

The episode begins with Erin Branning
stopping DS Kirsten Longacre to ask her
about the search she just performed. DS
Longacre tells her to open the gate and
refuses to talk about the search. While
Branning wants a debriefing, she doesn’t
detain Longacre, so the gate is opened,
and Kirsten is allowed to leave. Mean-
while, the others deal with panic onboard
Vigil. They put on gas masks and rush in
as the chamber begins filling with nitro-
gen. Walsh is taken to Tiffany Docherty
who begins caring for him immediately.

Commander Neil Newsome learns the battery has been restored thanks to the emergency bat-
tery. Newsome and Prentice learn it was an emergency shutdown without an emergency. Tara
Kierly interrupts and says there could be four or five above them since it is very noisy up there.

Once they notice Amy Silva listening to them, Elliot Glover is tasked with getting rid of her.
They likely have three hours of battery power so Prentice is put in charge of arranging a diesel
replenishment. Amy learns how bad things really are and that they could sink while Newsome
asks his officer to find out if they’re being shadowed. Silva turns her attention to Burke and the
fact he was discharged after the trawler when down. Glover admits Craig got into an argument
with his superior and it was a stupid thing to do. Silva keeps pushing until she learns Craig died
before Glover had a chance to log it in the duty logbook. He shows her where it is found before
returning to work. Meanwhile, Tiffany and Adams work on Walsh. Although Walsh is able to
talk, Tiffany still suspects the worse. She tells him to keep putting saline in his eyes and begins
removing his clothes.

As for Adams, he says his vision keeps blurring. Nevertheless, Hadlow is eager to get him
back to work. At Silva’s flat, Kirsten cares for the kitty and watches a man advocate against the
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weapons. She tries to open one of the files on the disk, but her access is denied. She gets a call
from DS Porter who confirms he has the names of the people who beat up Burke. They decide
to go for a pizza before Kirsten hides the thumb drive in a bowl nearby. When Kirsten meets
with Porter, she learns that Gary Walsh and another man beat the crap out of Craig Burke at
a local pub. The other guy was Navy, but nobody could identify him. She checks the database
for information and finds that Gary has a brother in the Navy as well. One was dishonorably
discharged, and Sam has a record of shoplifting and possession of heroin.

Once she finds that out, she contacts Branning to send a message to Silva. Meanwhile, Amy
talks to Prentice about Burke’s problem the day before he died. When she learns about Burke’s
troubles, she asks about Gary Walsh being put on charge too. Amy continues until Prentice gets
upset with her and tells her how challenging his work right now is. He explains he needs to get
the ship refueled without being detected before leading her elsewhere. He takes her to Newsome
and tells him what Silva has been doing. Newsome tells her he won’t confine her to quarters,
but he wants her to have Glover with her when she works. Heather Cronin is put in charge of
escorting Silva to Glover’s office. Kirsten returns and hears something in the flat. She calls the
police department to tell them she has been burgled and the suspect might still be there.

She is soon attacked before stabbing the man with a pair of scissors. When the police show
up in the distance, the intruder gets away on a motorcycle with another man. Silva gets Kirsten’s
message and learns about Walsh and his brother. She searches Walsh’s room and tests his
hidden sweets for heroin before turning her attention to Burke’s green fleece. She believes they
would’ve only got rid of the fleece if it has incriminated them. Since they can’t throw things away
down there, she thinks they can find it. She decides to talk to Walsh while Kirsten tells Colin
Robertson about the thumb drive she found in Burke’s room. She learns that Shaw wants to
meet with her. Kirsten argues that Burke was a whistleblower of sorts.

She believes that is just the tip of the iceberg since the main folders are all password protected.
Once Silva meets with Walsh, Tiffany asks Glover to check on Adams because he wasn’t well.
Then, Silva begins asking Walsh a handful of questions. She asks what Prentice put him on
charge for, but he pretends not to remember. He tells her he was in engineering at the time
and didn’t leave. Then, he went to his bunk for a nap and slept until Hadlow woke him up.
He isn’t sure why Hadlow came to wake up Burke. Walsh is adamant that Burke was a prick,
but he didn’t kill him. She wonders if someone was trying to kill him in the reactor area, but
Burke doesn’t believe so. She wants him to do a drug test since she found traces of heroin in his
belongings. He says his brother is the junkie and not him before trying to do the urine test in
front of her.

They step outside and Tiffany says she can’t spring something like this on one of her patients.
Silva insists it will clear Walsh since he couldn’t have met Burke on the missile deck if his alibi
holds up. Walsh yells that he is finished before intentionally spilling the urine on Amy. Glover
quickly tells him to clean it up. She tells him he needs to drink more water before returning and
testing the sample. She confirms the sample is negative for opiates and suggests he didn’t bring
them on board for his own use. Glover insists she isn’t doing herself any favors by treating Walsh
this way, but she is convinced he is involved somehow. He encourages her to get some sleep
before she admits she doesn’t understand why they don’t want her to find out the truth. Elliot
tells her how important trust is on the ship since it is being led by people making split second
decisions. Robertson and Kirsten meet with Branning and Shaw.

Shaw admits they’re getting a boat to replace Vigil so Silva could stay until it returns. That
would give her three weeks and Shaw promises to cooperate. Branning says they want to be
debriefed when they’ve been working on the base. They agree not to call it a murder investigation
before Kirsten asks about the trawler sinking off Barra Head. Shaw tells them what they’re doing
and says the cause has not been confirmed. Once they leave, Robertson and Longacre agree they
believe Silva is right and it is murder. Kirsten admits she ignored Jade earlier, but she’d like to
talk to Branning again. Kirsten asks her immediately, but Branning recommends putting it in an
email. Kirsten insists they need to work faster than that. Branning says it must work both ways
and they need to be debriefed. Kirsten agrees to cooperate more before Branning says she wasn’t
at the pub during the fight.

Burke allegedly went to the pub to apologize because Douglas Walsh had been involved in
bullying at the base. Burke gave evidence against Doug, and he was discharged as a result.
Doug killed himself and Burke showed up at his wake at the pub to apologize to Gary. Branning
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confirms she knows who the second guy was. Meanwhile, Amy Silva dreams about her past.
The 8-year-old asked her to marry her boyfriend and she admits she might be coming around
to it. Then, the accident occurs. The submarine experiences another calamity when it reaches
periscope depth. Tiffany explains they’re close to the surface, and it is a bit rough. She is told
to stay out of the way before getting the next message from Kirsten. The letter confirms that the
other person involved in the fight was Engineering Office Simon Hadlow. During the middle of
the chaos, she approaches Hadlow and records their conversation.

She questions him about his relationship with Burke and he lies. She presses him and tells
him what a jury would think about the evidence she already has. Hadlow insists it wasn’t him
or Walsh, but nobody meant to kill him. He says he can’t talk about it right now because of the
chain of command. Prentice interrupts and ridicules both until the conversation abruptly ends.
Prentice takes her back to her room and she leaves her phone recording. She insists she is going
to continue doing her job regardless. They get into a heated argument and Prentice curses Craig
Burke who he calls treacherous. He argues that Burke got exactly what was coming to him. He
locks the door and leaves her, so she begins calling for help. Next, Kirsten tracks down Jade
among the advocates and tries to get her to talk about Craig Burke. Kirsten explains she found a
USB stick he wanted Jade to have. Jade wants it back. Kristen wants the password to the main
folder. She tells Jade what they did to her to try to get the USB stick. She insists it could be MI5,
but Kirsten isn’t sure about that. Ben Oakley interrupts and doesn’t like the fact Jade is talking
to a police officer.

Once Ben leaves, Jade thinks they’ll say he was a bad guy, but he wasn’t. The Captain finds
that the submarine is scarily close to another ship so he orders them to go deeper. They brace
themselves for a collision. As Amy tries to kick the door down, it reminds her of the traumatic
event from her past. The submarine manages to slip under the other boat. Matthew Doward is
scolded for not hearing the other ship. Amy gives up on bashing the door down and decides to
climb through the nearby vent hole. Glover finds Amy sitting on the ground, but she insists she is
fine. He says the boat has come up so everything is going to be fine. She tells him about Prentice
locking her in before collapsing to the ground. Glover walks her through the panic attack, and
she tells him about the accident with her family. In a flashback, we see that Amy decided to save
the little girl and let the man drown since he was knocked out in the car anyway.

Once she saved her daughter, she tried to go back for him but couldn’t get him out. They’re
interrupted by Cronin who says they’re going to have a briefing in twenty minutes. Amy tells
Glover she is going to need his help. At the camp, Jade tells a friend she met someone who
knows what happened to Craig and she is going to meet them. She insists they want to help and
know everything that has happened. Meanwhile, the Captain needs to find out what to do next.
Hadlow believes they should wait around the surface, but Newsome does not. Hadlow says they
need to find out why the reactor was shut down in the first place. Newsome says to get it ready.
Amy approaches Prentice and says she is arresting him for obstructing an investigation. Matthew
listens as Newsome tells them to follow him. During this time, Glover searches the submarine
and finds something interesting. Amy questions Prentice about Burke and Gary Walsh.

He claims he doesn’t remember why there were no punishments for Gary Walsh, but she
doesn’t believe that. Amy lays out her theory that Walsh tried to plant heroin on Burke to get
him kicked out to avenge his brother. She confirms she swabbed Prentice’s cabin and wonders
what he’ll say when those swabs come back positive for heroin. He says he picked up the drugs
from Burke’s body so he would be contaminated anyway. She asks him about calling Burke
treacherous, but he denies it. She plays the recording so Prentice claims he called him that
because he had been sleeping with a girl at the Dunloch Peace Camp. She thinks he picked on
Burke, but he says he always played by the rules and picked him up on his poor standards. Amy
asks for Hadlow to join them since she believes he witnessed the assault on the missile deck.
Newsome calls for Hadlow while Amy says she believes Prentice hit Burke and caused him to
bleed.

When he found Burke dead, he panicked and planted the drugs on Burke’s body. Before long,
Hadlow arrives and is promptly questioned about seeing someone hit Burke on the missile deck.
Hadlow admits he saw someone, but he didn’t see who it was. Amy asks him about the chain of
command. Nevertheless, Hadlow isn’t willing to tell who he saw. He won’t give them any answers.
Once Hadlow leaves, Prentice and Newsome get into an argument. Newsome says being married
to an admiral’s daughter doesn’t make you an admiral yet. Prentice demands to have Amy locked
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away until they can get her off the boat. Otherwise, he’ll write the book on Newsome’s many,
many failings. Glover interrupts and reveals he has found Burke’s fleece. He confirms Amy told
him to search the direct route from Burke’s cabin to Prentice’s cabin and found it around there.
As for Walsh, he admitted to trying to frame Burke and says Prentice took them. Once Glover
leaves, the captain learns the engine room is ready. He tells Prentice he is stood down and will
be confined to his cabin.

Kirsten gets a call from Jade who wants her to come and meet her. Jade thinks she has
messed up. She was meant to meet someone, but she wants to talk to Kirsten about it first.
Kirsten rushes to her location and gets a text message from Jade saying Purity. She calls Porter
and tells him to try Purity on the USB stick. He tries it, the password works, and he finds tons
of files on the stick. Prentice asks Amy not to go after Hadlow and he knew Walsh was trying to
frame Burke. Then, he claims Burke asked him to meet him there on the missile deck. He says
they got into a fight and he has bruises to prove it. Burke hit his head. He went to his bunk to
apologize but Burke died in front of him. Prentice confesses to using the heroin to try to cover
it up and says he didn’t want to lose everything he had worked for because of one punch. She
searches the fleece and finds a stain on it. Prentice says Burke was comatose but twitching when
he found him.

He insists he didn’t hit him that hard since he didn’t lose consciousness. Amy insists there
is someone else she needs to speak to before rushing out of the room. Porter watches Burke’s
video in which he reminds Jade what to do with the stuff he put together. A car approaches
Jade on the car road and stops. Amy decides to talk to Adams. He tells her about his symptoms
and confirms he gave Burke mouth to mouth. She argues he needs to see the medic as soon
as possible before rushing off once again. Newsome tells everyone they’re going to restart the
reactor and what could happen. The process begins while everyone waits anxiously to see what
is going to happen. Full power is restored after a few tense moments. Then, Shaw learns they’ve
found the wreck of the missing trawler, the Mhairi Finnea. He orders to have them dive at first
light. Amy goes to Glover to say she thinks she is wrong about Prentice because he did what he
did thinking he killed Burke.

She thinks Burke was poisoned. Kirsten arrives at the meeting point only to find Jade missing.
She looks around and finds Jade’s lifeless body in the water nearby. She tries to resuscitate her
but it is too late.
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Episode 3

Season 1
Episode Number: 3
Season Episode: 3

Originally aired: Sunday September 05, 2021
Writer: Ed Macdonald
Director: James Strong
Show Stars: Suranne Jones (DCI Amy Silva), Rose Leslie (DC Kirsten Longacre),

Shaun Evans (Chief Petty Officer Elliot Glover), Anjli Mohindra (Lieu-
tenant Tiffany Docherty), Martin Compston (Chief Petty Officer Craig
Burke), Paterson Joseph (Captain Newsome), Connor Swindells (Lieu-
tenant Hadlow), Adam James (Commander Mark Prentice), Gary
Lewis (Superintendent Robertson), Lauren Lyle (Jade Antoniak), Lolita
Chakrabarti (Lieutenant Commander Erin Branning), Cal MacAninch
(Ben Oakley), Lorne MacFadyen (Chief Petty Officer Michael Doward),
Daniel Portman (Gary Walsh), Stephen Dillane (Rear Admiral Shaw)

Guest Stars: Anita Vettesse (Jackie Hamilton), Cristian Ortega (Anderton), Bobby
Rainsbury (Heather Cronin), Lois Chimimba (CPO Tara Kierly), Orla
Russell (Poppy), Tom Gill (Chief Petty Officer Adams), Oliver Lansley
(Mark Hill), Reuben Joseph (Porter), Therese Bradley (Laura Michaels),
Parth Thakerar (Jay Kohli), Bhav Joshi (Chief Petty Officer Deerborne),
Suni La (GP), Aileen Clarke (Journalist)

Summary: Kirsten’s investigation takes her into the heart of Scottish politics, but
when she unearths a navy cover-up, it leaves Amy questioning who
she can trust on Vigil.

As the third episode of Vigil begins, Jade’s
body is found and bagged. DSU Colin
Robertson approaches DS Kirsten Lon-
gacre and gives her a cup of coffee. It
is believed that Jade was drowned by
someone. Kirsten tells them that Jade
was supposed to be meeting someone but
they’re not sure. Kirsten believes Jade
had her phone on her and searching for it
would be worth a try. She tells Robertson
that this was a coordinated attack so they
should investigate it as one case. Robert-
son agrees before he is shown a picture of

the car that picked up Jade yesterday. Kirsten explains the owner is Mark Hill and he works for
Patrick Cruden. As Jade’s body is carried to the ambulance, Robertson tells Kirsten that none of
this was her fault. Meanwhile, Shaw learns about the diving group finding the Mhairi Finnea’s
hull this morning.

It is revealed that they found anechoic tiles that were ripped from the submarine’s skin during
the impact. Shaw says he’d like to see the Russians talk their way out of this one. Meanwhile,
Tiffany, Elliot Glover, and DCI Amy Silva take another look at Craig Burke’s body. Amy swabs
the inside of his lips and uses a flashlight to show he had a white powder there. She explains
there is discoloration because a substance is dissolving the dye. It is the same as the one they
found on Burke’s fleece, so he likely ingested some type of toxin. Amy is confident the toxin killed
him. Since Adam gave him mouth to mouth, he is unwell now too. DCI Silva tells them it was a
premeditated murder. As they leave, Amy asks Tiffany to narrow down the substance based on
the symptoms. Tiffany agrees to help but she doesn’t give her any promises.
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Meanwhile, Kirsten gives a briefing about Craig and Burke. She tells everyone about Jade’s
suspicions that the navy was involved in Burke’s death and the MI5 infiltrated the peace camp.
Although there is no evidence of that, Jade was working with Burke to obtain information on
vigil. DS Porter stands up and begins talking about the USB drive. He explains it contained a file
about a drug test on a hair sample. Burke paid for the test at a private lab, and it tested positive
for LSD. They can’t be positive who the hair belonged to, but 15 crew members were arrested by
local cops for being drunk and disorderly around that time. The navy tested the entire crew, and
nobody had LSD in their system. They wonder if Burke’s test contradicted the navy’s drug tests.
The USB drive also contains provocative photos of Lieutenant Tiffany Docherty.

In the background, they can see a man with a dragon tattoo, but they can’t tell if the man
is Burke. Robertson wants Tiffany vetted and to find out what happened in Florida. Kirsten
asks about the guy who replaced Burke. Porter identifies the man as CPO John Deerbourne. He
would’ve been with the crew in Florida, so Kirsten wants to talk to him. Robertson wants to go
to Cruden’s office to see what the advisor has to say. Seconds later, Erin Branning calls Kirsten
and tells her to turn on the news. They watch a news report about Burke’s death before Kirsten
denies it was leaked from their end. Branning confirms they’ve had questions about the dead
activist too. Kirsten repeatedly says the leaks aren’t coming from the police, but Branning isn’t
willing to believe it. Amy tells Captain Neil Newsome that Prentice didn’t kill Burke, but he is still
guilty of assault and obstruction of justice.

She warns him they’ve still got a very dangerous person on board with them before encour-
aging him to help her and not hinder her. Hadlow enters and says the diagnostics found nothing
wrong with the reactor, so Newsome tells him to run them again. Once he leaves, Silva wonders
who could’ve handled the highly toxic material. Glover admits it could be anyone since everyone
on the ship is skilled. Silva soon learns she is going to be on Vigil for three weeks since her
stay has been extended. She doesn’t want to stay and complains she isn’t prepared for that. She
rushes out, freaks out, and nearly has a panic attack. She scrambles to take her medication
before remembering her time with the young girl.

The girl tells Amy she wants to stay with her, but Amy admits it isn’t her decision. Amy says
she is going to stay with her grandparents, so they’ll still see each other. The girl complains that
Amy doesn’t love her anymore, but Amy denies it and promises to be with her for the rest of her
life. Tara approaches Amy and says Walsh’s career is over now. She tells Amy about Walsh being
abused as a child and his father putting cigarettes out on his arms. Amy insists it isn’t personal
and Walsh is being punished for bringing drugs on the ship to frame someone. Lois reveals Burke
was hiding stuff too. That catches Amy’s attention, and she quickly tries to find out what Lois
is talking about. Amy is willing to tell the judge that Gary Walsh cooperated and that could help
him. Lois explains Burke had a list and files on all the people he didn’t like.

When asked what she did about it, Lois explains she did what she was supposed to do and
took it straight to the commanding officer. The conversation ends when Silva gets another mes-
sage from Kirsten and learns about the murder of Burke’s girlfriend. Patrick Cruden talks to the
press and refuses to say much about the passing of the man on Vigil. Kirsten arrives and Mark
Hill approaches. He is asked about Jade getting into his vehicle at the police station yesterday
and he says it was a favor. He says he barely knew her, but they have other friends at the peace
camp, and he did it for them. She wonders how he knew she was dead. Again, he reminds her
they have friends at the peace camp. When asked where he was around 9 o’clock last night, he
claims he was at his girlfriend’s 30th. He insists he got home around 3 AM, but Kirsten says
she’ll need to check that.

He agrees to come to the station later while Kirsten gets a message on her phone about
Deerbourne. Lois asks Walsh if he is going to Burke’s memorial, but he isn’t sure he is wanted
there. Before she goes, she tells him she is there for him. The memorial begins while Prentice
shaves and Walsh drinks alone. Silva attends the memorial before the singing stops and Glover
talks about Craig Burke. He says they’ve come together to give a valued crew member the send-
off he deserves. Then, Newsome begins talking and confirms two of the crew members were
detained for serious breaches. He wants to make it clear that those arrests were not linked to
Craig Burke’s death. He goes on to say they’re dedicated to the mission of keeping Britain safe.
Hadlow begins reading from the Bible while Silva struggles with her flashbacks.

At the funeral, she has to let her daughter go. Back in the present, Glover checks on her.
She notices that their cook seems more upset than the others. He says her son has been in a
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bad place lately. Then, Silva asks about Tiffany’s relationship with Burke. He encourages her to
stop for five seconds for the service. Next, Kirsten meets with John Deerbourne who admits he is
getting bored and might take up knitting. He claims he wasn’t there during the party because he
went to Tampa to see his sister. Burke was off his face and smashing up his cabin while claiming
someone spiked his drink. He claims anyone could’ve spiked him, but everyone took drug tests,
and they were cleared. The navy didn’t believe him and he was kicked off the boat for causing so
much damage. He was only allowed back because John was injured.

When asked what he thinks happened at Port Havers, he says all the urine tests came back
negative. She pushes and he says he wasn’t there when it happened. She tells him about Jade
and that convinces him to say something, but only if she promises this can never come back to
him. John tells her to look at David because there was a problem with him. When she leaves,
she calls Porter to asks if Davis is on the crew list. Since he isn’t on the list, Porter is tasked with
checking the past records as well. She believes the drug test was Burke’s since he was trying to
prove he had been spiked. Porter confirms Jade’s bank account and phone records have arrived.
She was getting paid a grand a month by a limited company called Ansell Holdings.

The sole director of the company is Mark Hill. Over the last year, Jade has been making
late-night calls to one phone number and that number belongs to Mark’s boss Patrick Cruden.
Back on the ship, Amy decides to ask Prentice a few more questions. Prentice insists letting his
crew down is the worse thing about the situation for him. He believes Vigil needs him because
he is strong, and discipline has slipped under Newsome. They begin talking about the incident
at Port Havers. Prentice blames Burke for creating a problem there for the navy because his
claims didn’t match the official test results. Prentice alludes to the idea that the original samples
would’ve been tampered with. When asked, he thinks Tiffany would’ve overseen the drug tests,
but he isn’t sure why the navy didn’t take Burke’s claims more seriously. He isn’t sure if anything
else happened to Vigil around that time since the commander didn’t share anything with him.

He knows Amy is trying to protect the crew and he thinks that matters the most. When
Amy leaves, Glover asks her if she had permission to be in there since Prentice is about to be
court-martialed. Amy wants to know if Glover has been telling the truth, but he claims Newsome
would’ve told Burke to stop gossiping. He doubts Burke did it and suggests he was only trying to
get a rise out of Tara Kierly. Glover didn’t think the drug tests were relevant and remains adamant
that he went above and beyond to help her. He agrees to answer anything and immediately
confirms Tiffany was involved in the drug tests. She asks if there is anything else she should
know about Tiffany. Amy tells him about the murder of Burke’s girlfriend and Burke having the
photos of Tiffany. She knows Tiffany gave Burke paracetamol. Amy says she has means, motive,
and the opportunity to kill Burke.

She tells Glover she needs to speak to her now. Branning goes to Shaw to tell him the tiles did
not belong to the Russians. Newsome learns from Tara and Matthew Doward that they haven’t
received any communications. Walsh pulls Newsome aside to ask him if he is still facing dis-
charge. Walsh mentions what happened at Port Havers, so Newsome asks if he is threatening
him. He warns Walsh to keep his mouth shut or discharge will be the least of his worries. Jay
Kohli with MI5 and Laura Michaels visit Shaw and confirm they’re not at war with the United
States. Shaw wants to know why a Los Angeles class submarine brought down a fishing trawler
while covertly tracking HMS Vigil. He wants to know why they had to send down divers to get
this information. Laura believes it had something to do with the incident at Port Havers. They
want to discuss Craig Burke and Jade.

Newsome gets a top secret note about the United States submarine. Walsh continues drinking
and becomes more belligerent. He grabs a set of keys before unlocking a door. Next, Kirsten tracks
down Mark Hill and asks about his boss. She sits down with Cruden and asks about the shell
company and why he was using it to pay Jade. She accuses of them paying Jade for trident
information and leaking it to the press, but they deny it. Cruden agrees to talk about it so Mark
steps outside. Cruden says it wasn’t an affair and instead Jade was his daughter. He says they
were trying to work things out, and he asked Mark to set up the payments to Jade. His wife
didn’t and still doesn’t know about it. He breaks down when he learns more about Jade’s death.
Jade had her laptop stolen and she thought MI5 was following her because of Craig Burke.

Craig thought he was a whistleblower and there was a coverup. He was conflicted because
he had something to show the boats were fit for purpose and the evidence could’ve been the
end of it. Burke wouldn’t talk to Cruden so everything went through Jade. When she leaves, she
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learns there is more information about Davis. Porter says Ross Harmison was on Vigil’s crew list
but disappeared from it a few weeks later. He was transferred to the Middle East so it sounds
a bit like the story Cruden was telling. She wants to talk to Robertson but can’t because he is
meeting with MI5. When the call ends, she notices someone following her, so she approaches
and the car speeds away. When she makes it back, Robertson promises he told MI5 as little as
possible. Glover and Amy approach Tiffany to ask about the drug tests. She accuses Tiffany of
being involved.

Tiffany admits to switching some of the samples for clean urine. She denies that someone
pressured her into doing it and claims she was only trying to help her friends. She doesn’t think
they should’ve lost their careers over it, but Amy believes someone told her to do it. Tiffany is
asked if she was pressured into poisoning Craig Burke before being questioned about the photo.
She insists she was never blackmailed by Burke. Kirsten returns to the cat and works on the
computer to find information about the Port Havers incident. She eventually finds something
about a few deaths at Port Havers. She joins Robertson and they meet with Shaw and Branning
to ask about the drug tests and the picture of Tiffany. Shaw says they’ve never seen it before.
Then, they’re asked about Ross Harmison.

Shaw claims they’re allowed to apply for transfers and pretends there was nothing to it.
Kirsten asks about the two David Marine contractors who drowned in the harbor. The incident
happened the day after Vigil’s crew for wasted. Kirsten alludes to the idea that the two incidents
are linked. She wants to know if the navy was concerned that Burke would tell Jade what he
knew. Robertson follows up by asking if the navy saw Burke as a security risk. Shaw suggests
otherwise since they allowed Craig to come back on the ship. Kirsten insists she was followed
earlier, but Branning denies it. Robertson believes that is enough, so he ends the interview and
makes Kirsten come with him. When Amy leaves, she tells Glover she thinks Tiffany is telling the
truth. She wants to know more about the person in the photo with Tiffany.

As they continue, they see Walsh in the distance and he points a gun at them. Walsh says
he has nothing left and he isn’t responsible for Burke’s death. He complains about Ross killing
someone and getting a transfer. He doesn’t think it is fair. Walsh puts the gun to his head, so
Amy quickly tries to talk him out of doing something insane. She insists she has been there too
since she watched her boyfriend die. His mom won’t let her see the girl they raised together and
that broke her. Amy insists there are still pieces of light, and someone will come along to make it
worth it. She successfully convinces him to drop the weapon. In a flashback, we see Amy getting
medical advice from a doctor. She complains about not having the right to see Poppy before
admitting she misses them. She agrees to try the recommended medication. After that, she sits
with Walsh and asks him about Harmison. He tells her how they went for a drink and the duty
watch had the reactor on cool-down for maintenance.

Harmison got back early to relieve them but he was still messed up so he went for a kip. He
didn’t realize the cold water was failing and that caused the reactor temperature to skyrocket.
Two contractors in the turbine room got killed when one of the pipes likely cracked under the
pressure. They had been cooked alive by the time Walsh got to them. If they had been a few
moments later, they would’ve been dealing with another Fukushima. He admits everyone was
ordered to keep their mouths shut and the two men allegedly drowned. Burke knew but Walsh
isn’t sure how that happened. He says Harmison messed up, but the boats are on their last legs
anyway. Nobody wants to talk about it and Burke was right about that. Burke is sent back to
his room and Amy promises to get him the help he needs. Amy reads the note from Kirsten and
looks at a family picture of Glover while remembering the past.

She wakes up with Kirsten next to her reading. Amy looks at the picture closely and notices
the tattoo on the man’s arm. It is Elliot and he appears to have the same tattoo as the name
in the picture with Tiffany. Shaw calls someone and says there is a situation that needs to be
contained. Meanwhile, Kirsten calls the office to get a license plate number run for her. She calls
in the number of the car tailing her, but it doesn’t seem to be in the system. A car can’t get to her
quickly since it has been a busy night. She tries to go to a safe location. Glover goes to Tiffany
and says Burke stole the photo from his phone. She promises not to say anything. He kisses her,
but she is cold toward him. Kirsten turns on her lights and floors it. The car chases after her.
She makes it to the car park with backup four minutes out. She continues fleeing from the other
vehicle while waiting for backup to arrive.

She stops and approaches the people behind her. She finds out they’re MI5 and they want her
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to come with them. Glover returns to Amy who says she didn’t get anything else from Walsh. She
says she needs to get some sleep and Newsome can wait. Glover moves and lets her go before the
episode ends.
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Episode 4

Season 1
Episode Number: 4
Season Episode: 4

Originally aired: Sunday September 12, 2021
Writer: Chandni Lakhani
Director: Isabelle Sieb
Show Stars: Suranne Jones (DCI Amy Silva), Rose Leslie (DC Kirsten Longacre),

Shaun Evans (Chief Petty Officer Elliot Glover), Anjli Mohindra (Lieu-
tenant Tiffany Docherty), Martin Compston (Chief Petty Officer Craig
Burke), Paterson Joseph (Captain Newsome), Connor Swindells (Lieu-
tenant Hadlow), Adam James (Commander Mark Prentice), Gary
Lewis (Superintendent Robertson), Lauren Lyle (Jade Antoniak), Lolita
Chakrabarti (Lieutenant Commander Erin Branning), Cal MacAninch
(Ben Oakley), Lorne MacFadyen (Chief Petty Officer Michael Doward),
Daniel Portman (Gary Walsh), Stephen Dillane (Rear Admiral Shaw)

Guest Stars: Tom Gill (Chief Petty Officer Adams), Lois Chimimba (CPO Tara Kierly),
Anita Vettesse (Jackie Hamilton), Bobby Rainsbury (Heather Cronin),
Cristian Ortega (Anderton), Therese Bradley (Laura Michaels), Parth
Thakerar (Jay Kohli), Reuben Joseph (DS Porter), Sam Redford (Pe-
ter Ingles), Dan Li (Hennessy), Angelique Fernandez (Adm. Scott), Su-
sannah Doyle (Secretary of State), Jordan McCurrach (Signals Opera-
tions), Fode Simbo (Abiola), Gerry Lynch (Peace Camper)

Summary: Kirsten closes in on the killer, but their capture reveals the grave
threat that Vigil faces. On the submarine, Amy makes a terrifying dis-
covery.

As the episode begins, DCI Amy Silva
has a dream about a past argument
with Kirsten because of their relationship
and moving in together. She is awoken
when the ships receive a firing order. She
rushes through the hallway while Cap-
tain Newsome carries out his duties. She
spots Adams and calls for him while he
says they’re getting the boat to the launch
depth. She tries to follow him but is soon
pushed against the tank next to her. Amy

crashes to the ground. Newsome says firing unit keys have been issued to the SMO. A cafeteria
worker finds Amy and offers to help her get to the medic, but Amy has other ideas. She makes
it to the control room before Newsome quickly demands her leave. Elliot Glover tries to calm her
and get her to exit the control room.

DCI Silva desperately tries to get Newsome not to fire the weapon, but Elliot takes her down
and insists it is only a drill. Once things calm down, Elliot checks on Silva. She doesn’t answer
and walks out of the room without saying anything. Next, Jay Kohli and Laura Michaels begin
questioning Kirsten about the Port Havers incident. They want to know who leaked the highly
confidential information. They believe she might’ve told others about it since she met with Cruden
not too long ago. She insists Patrick was trying to help her find Jade’s killer. While he suspects
the navy covered up an incident in Florida, he doesn’t know why. They know about Jade and
have been monitoring the Dunloch peace camp. Jay says the group sometimes got violent when
it met with other activist groups.
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Kirsten asks about the operatives MI5 in the camp before DSU Robertson enters and inter-
rupts. Robertson tells them to submit their other questions in writing while leading Kirsten out of
the room. Outside, they discuss what Kirsten got out of the MI5 agents before she is taken home.
Amy Silva works on her cut. A woman checks on her and Amy asks to talk to the Coxswain. In
a flashback, Kirsten meets Amy for the first time and asks her to help prepare for the interview.
Kirsten buys her a drink and tries to get tips from Amy. She doesn’t give up until Amy agrees to
give her five minutes of her time. Elliot arrives and Amy asks why he didn’t tell her it was only a
drill, but Elliot says they didn’t have time to do so since they’re supposed to complete the drill as
quickly as possible.

She asks him to sit down before accusing him of having an affair with Tiffany Docherty. She
wonders if Burke was blackmailing him with the pictures to get information about Port Havers.
He doesn’t want to discuss it, so she suggests doing so in front of the captain. He admits Burke
was blackmailing him. Elliot says there was no evidence or proof that it happened, and he might
not have given it to him anyway. Amy wonders if Elliot made everything go away by making
Burke go away. Elliot gets upset and says he had nothing to do with the death of Craig Burke.
He doesn’t think it matters anymore after the stunt Amy pulled in the control room today since
everyone thinks she is deranged now. He was the only one who didn’t, but he warns Amy that
she is on her own now.

Elliot leaves and tries to recollect himself. Kirsten returns to work and tells DS Porter that
she hasn’t slept much. He has been watching CCTV footage of the roadway on the night of
Jade’s murder, but Kirsten wants to focus on something else first. She wants to look into Jade’s
claim that an MI5 agent was with her at the train station since a camera might’ve recorded the
individual in question. She believes they should start with the August protest that got violent
and they soon find out it took place in Glasgow. Kirsten tells Porter to check both ends of the line
to see if he can spot Jade on the camera. In another flashback, Amy tells Kirsten that nobody
gets it the first time. Amy instructs her not to be too nice since not everyone deserves it. Amy
says a great detective shuts herself off and focuses on the work at the cost of everything else.

They talk about loneliness and not having a heart while at work. Back in the present, Amy
gets a meal and spots Gary Walsh next to her. She overhears the cafeteria worker saying he is
getting out because there is new evidence. Tiffany approaches Amy to tell her she needs to check
on her in the sickbay and it is the captain’s orders. They go to the sickbay for a check-up and
Tiffany tries to find out why she hasn’t been taking her pain medications. Amy insists she is
fine before Newsome enters and asks for Tiffany’s report. Newsome asks her about her medical
condition and the fact Amy brought medication on board. Elliot learns as Tiffany explains the
withdrawal symptoms of the medication. Newsome wonders if that caused Amy’s outburst, but
Amy says she never told them about her medication.

Elliot believes she mentioned it. Amy quickly says no before Newsome argues they’re only
trying to help. She begins complaining that they’re only trying to discredit her before she spills the
beans about their affair. Newsome says Elliott has promised him that there has never been any
inappropriate contract. She begins telling Newsome about Burke blackmailing Elliot and wanting
to get information about Port Havers. When he asks if she has any evidence, she complains that
he isn’t letting her get any. He says Port Havers is classified information and has no impact
on the case, but Amy says that isn’t up to him to decide. Newsome says he can’t have Amy in
questionable health making wild accusations. He wants to relieve her of her duties since she is
unfit. She argues he doesn’t have the authorities, but Newsome says otherwise and orders Amy
to say in his cabin for the rest of the day.

Amy is tasked with proving she is fit for duty. Otherwise, she’ll be confined to her quarters
for the rest of her stay. Porter finds a video of Jade outside of Central Station on the day of the
protest. He shows Kirsten a video of a guy in an ice hockey jacket. They watch as Jade takes
a photo of the man in question. Kirsten is worried they took Jade’s phone because she took a
picture of them. They continue tracking the man and find a video of him getting into a vehicle.
They get the address for the car based on its license plate number and quickly rush to the house
of Peter Ingles. Once they arrive, Kirsten looks through his window and spots someone running
around inside. They try to chase him down. Kirsten ends up taking him down and cranking his
arm behind his back.

She notices red spots on his shirt, and they look like bloodstains. She immediately arrests
him for the murder of Jade. Peter Ingles is taken to the station and questioned about Jade. He
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claims he didn’t know Jade. When Kirsten says Jade would recognize him, Peter says they should
bring her in there so they can find out what this is all about. Kirsten asks about Peter’s shoulder.
She believes they would find a wound there made by a pair of scissors about three days ago. She
tells Peter he isn’t getting out of this one, so he asks to speak to his lawyer. Meanwhile, Tiffany
encourages Amy to take antihistamines because coming off antidepressants can be bad. Amy
asks Tiffany if it is hard for her to trust Elliot. Tiffany leaves and tells Elliot she isn’t doing good.
She insists he could’ve told her he was going to speak to the captain.

Peter is asked about the partial SIM card they found outside of his flat and the fact it matches
Jade’s. Before long, the MI5 agents return and tell Kirsten the man isn’t Peter Ingles. Instead, his
name is Piter Vasiliev. He works for the Russian Embassy and has full diplomatic immunity. He
is a GRU intelligence office. They can ask the Russians to drop his immunity but there is likely
nothing they can do to Piter so he will properly leave today. Once he leaves, Jay complains this
didn’t have to happen since they could’ve watched him if they knew. Jay goes on to say that this
level of interference is basically unheard of. Porter finds something about an online thread about
fishing that Peter has been posting on.

Since the images are from all around the world, he believes it could be some type of code.
The last one was posted on August the 30th or the day before Vigil went out on patrol. Next,
Vigil gets new orders, so they decide to head to the shipping lane. Newsome tells Elliot they need
to take special measures to avoid detection and can no longer have close-quarters situations.
Meanwhile, Amy hangs out and remembers spending a night out drinking with Kirsten. Kirsten
says her whole face lights up when she is having a good time before they kiss. Kirsten apologizes
and says she shouldn’t have done that. The night ends and we return to Amy in her cell. Kirsten
briefs Shaw and the others. She says evidence collected shows that Ingles likely killed Jade and
he was in contact with someone on the boat.

They’re worried that this means a Russian agent is on Vigil, but Shaw doesn’t want to believe
it. They talk about Burke being a whistleblower and other things before Shaw is asked if they’re
keeping anything to themselves. Shaw says there is nothing about Russians, but there are con-
cerns about the trawler that went down at Barra Head. The peace camp believes it was dragged
down by a submarine. Shaw confirms it is true and reveals it was dragged down by an American
submarine. They’ve confirmed the Americans who haven’t denied it. They had been shadowing
Vigil since it left port, but they won’t say why. They believe they’ll have to give them something
now that they know about Peter Ingles. Shaw agrees to have a conversation with them about it.
Back on Vigil, Walsh shows Hadlow that the locks to the RCMS panel have been tampered with
and someone could’ve used that to force a reactor shutdown.

Hadlow tells him to keep it to himself until he has time to speak to the captain. The cafeteria
lady Jackie brings Amy some food and wakes her up in the process. They talk about the good
news with Jackie’s son. Jackie admits her son did some teenage stuff, got into trouble, and spent
time in prison. Jackie tells her she left her some extra pudding to cheer her up before leaving.
She returns to the kitchen and reads a note in her pocket. Shaw tries to find out more from
the Americans, but they’re not eager to say much. When he returns to the others, he says the
Americans were concerned with Vigil and decided to shadow it. They didn’t want to risk their
source and they have no idea what the Russians are planning. Branning agrees to set up a
meeting with Downing Street so they can tell them. Shaw says he’ll tell Newsome, but he isn’t
sure what he can do about it.

They’ll need the name of the traitor. Back on Vigil, Newsome learns about the padlocks being
tampered with. They believe the ship was sabotaged so they will investigate it without drawing
attention to themselves. Mark Prentice goes to the captain’s room and is surprised to find Amy
in there. He sits down before being asked about Jackie’s son. He says the boy is locked up in
Indonesia on drugs charges. He has a ten-year sentence when they normally get death. Her son
was in the process of an appeal, but it got turned down. Amy says it doesn’t make sense for
him to be getting out after one year of a ten-year sentence. Kirsten is given the chance to talk
to the secretary of state. She explains they believe Peter was sending messages to someone on
Vigil. They stopped communicating the day before Vigil went on patrol and the messages from
the pictures have something to do with the systems on Vigil.

One of them refers to the operation of the atmosphere management kit. The Secretary of State
asks if someone on board is actively working to sabotage Vigil. They’re still working to decode the
messages, but it could take weeks. They hope they could help identify the person in question.
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Robertson believes the two murder victims were killed because they uncovered what the Russians
were doing. They won’t have a replacement for Vigil for a week and the Secretary doesn’t think
they should remove the ship. It would look bad with the upcoming vote as to whether they should
replace the nuclear warheads. Kirsten asks the minister if she’d be able to live with knowing she
let something bad happen to the people on Vigil. She says it is a lot to consider and she’ll talk to
the PM.

In another flashback, Kirsten finds out that Amy doesn’t like going home before she is invited
out for a drink. Once again, something goes wrong on Vigil. Amy learns that they’ve lost all
broadcasts. She searches one of the bunks and finds the material that was likely found on Burke.
She takes the pillowcase while Shaw finishes a call with the minister. Shaw delivers the message
that Vigil is set to return to port immediately. Newsome learns the comms wire is going to take
a few hours to repair so they won’t be able to get messages until then. Amy goes to Newsome
to show him what she found in Jackie’s bunk. She believes Jackie poisoned Craig Burke. She
wants to talk to Jackie right away and says he will just have to trust her. Newsome pages Jackie
immediately.

Elliot hears Jackie Hamilton being paged to the control room. Kirsten returns home to the
kitty and remembers drinking with Amy. Although Amy said she wasn’t into men, she seems into
Kirsten. She tells Amy to tell her that when she is sober, but Amy says she’ll have a headache
although she will feel the same. She returns to reality when she gets a call from Robertson who
says they’ve sent a message for Vigil to come back. They sent the message an hour ago and
haven’t had a response. Newsome complains to his people before Amy tells him she is going to
go look for Jackie. She finds Jackie out on the ground before she is attacked too.
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Episode 5

Season 1
Episode Number: 5
Season Episode: 5

Originally aired: Sunday September 19, 2021
Writer: Tom Edge
Director: Isabelle Sieb
Show Stars: Suranne Jones (DCI Amy Silva), Rose Leslie (DC Kirsten Longacre),

Shaun Evans (Chief Petty Officer Elliot Glover), Anjli Mohindra (Lieu-
tenant Tiffany Docherty), Martin Compston (Chief Petty Officer Craig
Burke), Paterson Joseph (Captain Newsome), Connor Swindells (Lieu-
tenant Hadlow), Adam James (Commander Mark Prentice), Gary
Lewis (Superintendent Robertson), Lauren Lyle (Jade Antoniak), Lolita
Chakrabarti (Lieutenant Commander Erin Branning), Cal MacAninch
(Ben Oakley), Lorne MacFadyen (Chief Petty Officer Michael Doward),
Daniel Portman (Gary Walsh), Stephen Dillane (Rear Admiral Shaw)

Guest Stars: Stephen Dillane (RAdm. Shaw), Lois Chimimba (CPO Tara Kierly),
Anita Vettesse (Jackie Hamilton), Bobby Rainsbury (Heather Cronin),
Cristian Ortega (Anderton), Aisha Toussaint (Cat), Orla Russell
(Poppy), Therese Bradley (Laura Michaels), Oliver Lansley (Mark Hill),
Reuben Joseph (DS Porter), Dan Li (Hennessy), Lisa Livingstone
(Arena Office Manager), Fode Simbo (Abiola), Anne Kidd (Morag Tor-
rens), Michael MacKenzie (Gordon Torrens), Robin Laing (Miller), Gerry
Lynch (Peace Camper), Nebli Basani (Digital Operations Officer), John
Wolfe (Military Police Officer), Holly Woodhouse (Naval Officer)

Summary: Vigil is forced into lockdown as disaster strikes. With communication
lost, Kirsten desperately hunts for clues to the source of the threat to
Vigil.

As the episode begins, Elliot Glover leads
DCI Amy Silva to safety. He warns her
there is an airborne hazard and she can’t
let anyone through this door. She uses
the phone nearby to send the message to
move the ship to emergency stations for
an airborne hazard. Elliot begins work-
ing to clear the deck swiftly. He clears the
deck before returning to Amy and telling
Matthew Doward to close the door. He
uses the phone to send a message about

the airborne hazard and the fact that Jackie is now dead. Once the phone call ends, Elliot tells
Amy that Jackie got it sprayed on her and she started vomiting. He wants to talk to someone,
but Amy warns him he could spread it to others. He’ll need to change his clothes and wash to
avoid exposing others.

Doward is sent to get his bag so he can change clothes. Neil Newsome eagerly awaits the
Coxswain’s report. Once Elliot changes his clothes, Doward is tasked with making sure nobody
touches them and telling the medic to meet them at the shower block. Amy tries to get informa-
tion from Glover while he insists he saved her and could’ve let her die if he wanted her dead.
They run into Tiffany Docherty who tells Amy she needs to decontaminate as well. Amy is given
instructions for cleaning herself before Tiffany asks if it is a nerve agent like sarin. Silva doesn’t
have an answer for her because it happened so quickly, but she thinks it is. After the intro, DS
Kirsten Longacre is awoken in the middle of the night, so she decides to relax in a nice bath.
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We see a flashback of the detectives bathing together before Tiffany gives Elliot advice. He
learns he’ll need atropine and pralidoxime if he gets sick due to a nerve agent, and they don’t
have either. He uses the opportunity to apologize for being such a prick during the last few days.
She checks his pupils and says they know that isn’t in good shape. She pulls down her mask,
kisses him, and says that was the last time. In the morning, Kirsten calls DS Porter and wakes
him up. She explains that the navy hasn’t done a good job looking for a traitor. She believes it
is up to them to find out, but Porter says Ingles didn’t even leave them a phone number. She
believes someone in Scotland knows who Peter’s assets were.

He was there for a long time and likely built networks. Some of those people still have to
be out there. She wants to help because Amy is down there alone and she has no idea what is
coming. On the fridge, we see a note about Poppy’s upcoming birthday. Kirsten promises to be in
after she does something first. She tells Porter to get as many people as he needs, and he can’t
have breakfast first. Meanwhile, Elliot tells Amy and Newsome how he found Jackie. When he got
there, Jackie had the lid off a big tin and gas was pouring out of it. He isn’t sure whether Jackie
might’ve opened the tin by accident. He goes on to say Jackie was said and she said, "Tell Sean I
couldn’t." By that point, Jackie started getting sick and vomiting so Elliot went for the gasmask.
When he returned, Amy was there.

She died quickly and Amy believes she experienced symptoms similar to Craig Burke. They’re
not sure if Jackie contained it so the gas is likely knocking out their comms wire and missile
command. Plus, they aren’t going to be able to feed the crew. Amy wonders if she set off the
attack there deliberately, but Tiffany doubts it since she was going to see her son again. Amy
tells the captain she is fine since Tiffany gave her a substitute medication that will take the edge
off her withdrawal. Kirsten delivers a birthday gift to Poppy from Amy. Mrs. and Mr. Torrens
arrive and reprimand Poppy for opening the door to strangers. They invite Kirsten to have tea
with them. Poppy loves the gift although Kirsten thinks Amy would’ve found something even
better. Poppy wonders if Amy can come and visit her. Kirsten believes that would be possible.

Poppy admits she knew who Kirsten was because she had seen her pictures on Amy’s phone.
While the Torrens say they chat with Amy from time to time, Poppy says she loves Amy. Poppy
is sent to her room so the Torrens can learn more about the person they might be sharing joint
custody with. Kirsten explains she knows nothing about joint custody before revealing they broke
up. The Torrens didn’t know since Amy never mentioned it. They insist they only wanted Poppy
to have stability after her father died until she got depressed and told her teacher they had taken
her away from her mommy. They realize Kirsten doesn’t need to hear this since they’re no longer
together. They make sure Kirsten says goodbye to Poppy before she goes. Kirsten apologizes it
is her visiting and not Amy but promises Amy will see her as soon as she comes back. When
Kirsten returns to her vehicle, she cries and remembers arguing with Amy about getting to meet
Poppy.

Next, Shaw briefs the others and says there is evidence the Russians are mounting a move
against Vigil. They have tried getting in touch with Newsome, but he hasn’t responded. He tasks
the men with getting their boats out there and finding Vigil if it has surfaced. He wants to make
sure the Russians know Vigil is still operational and orders the others to tell their respective
crews it is only a drill. Newsome meets with Prentice and the others. He now believes Burke was
killed with a nerve agent just like Jackie was. The captain explains Jackie was likely responsible
for Burke’s murder and the latest attack. When she tried to set the device off, she was exposed
to the nerve agent and killed. Amy theorizes that Jackie had a deal with influential people in
Indonesia who could’ve got her son out of prison. Simon Hadlow isn’t sure she would kill Craig
Burke, but Amy is.

Newsome wants to focus on the nerve agent which he describes as a nation-state attack. He
wants to tell the other crew members as little as possible before admitting they cannot receive
orders or fire. The enemy has succeeded in knocking out Britain’s nuclear deterrent and they’ll
need to fight to get it back. Hadlow knows that bleach is used for basic decontamination of
nerve agents and hypochlorite breaks it down and neutralizes it. He believes they can isolate the
sprinklers, fill them with bleach, and vent it later. They’ll need to come up with a plan to get
someone in there to work on the drive. Tiffany argues they’d have about 15 minutes when using
the deep-sea suits. Hadlow agrees to rig something up so they can decontaminate the individual
when they return. When the meeting ends, Elliot tries to take Amy to see Jackie’s crew, but she
doesn’t want his help since he said she was mentally unfit. He asks if anyone told her about the
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RCMS and she clearly knows nothing about it.
He says it is a dial that overrides the reactor manually and Walsh found out that the padlock

protecting it was covered in scratch marks. Elliot says it was sabotage because someone wants
the ship to surface and they’re trying to do it again. Amy is told she is working on the why of
things and they need her doing that. Elliot wants to help her with that. She relents and decides
to accept his help. Meanwhile, Kirsten passes by a sign for the Braehead Arena which is home
to The Glasgow Hurricanes. She goes to the arena in hopes of learning more about Peter Ingles.
Kirsten soon finds out that Peter is on the arena’s ticket and marketing lists. He has been to
numerous games over the past five years. Kirsten manages to get Peter’s phone number and
quickly snaps a picture of it using her smartphone. She also finds out he took guests to some of
the games and gets that information printed out although it is basic and doesn’t provide names.

They have CCTV for a week and the games are broadcast live. Plus, he used the same seat
for every game so it should be easy to find footage of him and his guest. Kirsten steps into the
hallway and calls Porter to tell him about the evidence she has collected. She thinks someone
would’ve taken pictures or videos of them together. She also tells him to run Peter’s number
while Amy questions one of Jackie’s cafeteria friends. He admits Jackie was out of the cafeteria
when they started experiencing problems and she could’ve been gone for five minutes or so. Amy
wonders if she would’ve had time to get to the RCMS and back. Elliot believes it is possible,
but you’d have to run all the way. Jackie’s coworker is asked if she seemed different before the
incident.

He says she was happy because of her kid getting out and all over the place. He admits it
was one of the most unfair things he has ever heard of and wants to get a collection together
for Jackie’s family. Elliot agrees to talk to him about it later before they leave, and Amy says
she wants to see the scene. They go to Newsome to ask for the dry suits so they can collect the
evidence and dispose of the device together. They talk to Newsome and Prentice in private about
Jackie’s actions and the sabotage of the RCMS panels. Newsome isn’t sure they should send
Silva until Glover vouches for her and explains he has been giving her a hard time to cover up
his affair with a crew member. Amy explains there is a pattern of someone trying to get the ship
to surface and she is worried what could come on the fourth attempt.

When she insists the lives of the crew could depend on it, Newsome tells her to be ready by the
time Hadlow sets up his decontamination tent. They’re told they’ll have 15 minutes before they
pass out and nobody is going to come save them. Newsome orders them to go after the hazmat
suits and get the device off the ship first. Kirsten returns to the office and learns from Porter that
an entire team and the MI5 are working to track down social media posts from the games. They
got him once and also found him on Facebook from a game back in March. Kirsten looks at the
picture and recognizes the man he is with as Ben Oakley who lives at the peace camp and was a
friend of Jade’s. They storm the peace camp before a female member contacts Ben and tells him
so he can stay away. Kirsten talks to the woman who was sending the message and encourages
her to tell them where Ben is.

Porter finds a laptop that Cat recognizes as Jade’s. She insists it means nothing since she
used to borrow it regularly too. That means she knows the login details and Kirsten wants them
so she can look at it in relation to Jade’s murder. Shaw learns that several Russian ships are
moving into the patrol area so he wonders if they know where Vigil is. Amy thanks Elliot and
learns he might be seeing more of his family as punishment for his affair with Tiffany. She learns
she can only take items that can be washed down before they’re told they have five minutes and
need to get into the suits. Amy writes a note about Poppy’s birthday and draws a little bird on
the notebook paper while remembering their time together. Poppy asks why her grandma doesn’t
like Amy. Silva tries to explain it away as grief. Back to the present, Amy tells the woman that
she likes birds and Longacre should receive the note if she doesn’t make it back.

Branning shows up and tries to get an update from Kirsten who promises she’ll tell her what
she knows when they get something concrete. Kirsten learns the Russians have put several ves-
sels on the patrol area. Branning is worried they’re hunting Vigil. Ben visits Patrick Cruden to tell
him he has something big. They go inside and Ben reveals the Russians have a spy in Dunloch.
He has photographic evidence but needs to get somewhere they cannot get to him. Laura believes
Ben might’ve deleted the photo after keeping a copy of it. He might’ve been protecting the person
he was meeting and that person likely worked on Vigil. Porter learns Oakley made five calls to
Cruden’s office in the last two hours while Ben tells Curden about Peter Ingles.
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He shows them a picture of Ingles with someone from the Royal Navy. Ben explains he was
approached by the Russian guy in the photo, and he kept tabs on him after that. He didn’t tell
the police because he thinks they would bury it. They agree to release the photo before bringing
the police in, but Ben says it shouldn’t happen here. He wants political asylum at a foreign
consulate because the Russians will anyone to stop it from getting out there. Kirsten and Porter
begin looking for Cruden and start by going to his house. Patrick says he’d like to acknowledge
Jade and Ben agrees. Ben makes a video denouncing the nuclear deterrence since they’ve been
infiltrated by a foreign power. He argues it is time to get the nukes out of Scotland and Britain
before they lead to catastrophe.

Next, Hadlow gives Elliot and Amy instructions for their return. Ice is added to their suits, they
put on helmets, and learn they have radios so they can talk to each other during the mission.
They go inside and shut the door behind them. Kirsten and Ben learn that Patrick isn’t at home.
Kirsten gets a call from Robertson who says it has been nonstop with Mark Hill who has been
calling consulates. They know Ben is trying to get political asylum with one of the consulates.
Kirsten orders them to send people to the Russian consulate because he’ll be going there. Elliot
goes for the hazmat suits while Amy stays and checks the scene around Jackie’s body. Eliot
delivers the hazmat suits before heading back to Amy. Kirsten and Porter approach Cruden and
asks him about Ben. He doesn’t help and instead says Ben is going to be the guy who got nukes
out of Scotland. He is surprised to learn it wasn’t Ben’s photo and was actually taken by Jade.

Ben allegedly stole the photo and gave it to Russian agent Peter Ingles. Kirsten argues it was
the photo that got Jade killed. Cruden doesn’t know who was in the photo but confirms Ben is
at the Chinese consulate. While Amy collects evidence, Elliot begins working on the device. Amy
finds a note on Jackie, and it says something about a little cat, Bali and not a done deal. Jackie
was warned to leave it where she was instructed or she would join Craig Burke. Amy wonders if
they weren’t on the boat so Jackie killed Burke so they could fly his replacement out there. Both
suspect Matthew Doward. Then, they find out that Elliot’s suit has ripped so they need to get
him out of there in a hurry. He crashes to the ground and gives her the device that needs to be
flushed in the torpedo tube. Amy helps Elliot escape, but he is still struggling. She rushes to get
rid of the device. Once she disposes of it, her helmet is removed and she begins to recover.

Doward takes the note from her and smacks her across the face. Tiffany goes to work on Elliot
who has been exposed while Amy finds herself locked in one of the missile holds. Doward hits
a button and her tube begins filling with water. The episode ends as Amy struggles to keep her
head above water.
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Episode 6

Season 1
Episode Number: 6
Season Episode: 6

Originally aired: Sunday September 26, 2021
Writer: Tom Edge
Director: Isabelle Sieb
Show Stars: Suranne Jones (DCI Amy Silva), Rose Leslie (DC Kirsten Longacre),

Shaun Evans (Chief Petty Officer Elliot Glover), Anjli Mohindra (Lieu-
tenant Tiffany Docherty), Martin Compston (Chief Petty Officer Craig
Burke), Paterson Joseph (Captain Newsome), Connor Swindells (Lieu-
tenant Hadlow), Adam James (Commander Mark Prentice), Gary
Lewis (Superintendent Robertson), Lauren Lyle (Jade Antoniak), Lolita
Chakrabarti (Lieutenant Commander Erin Branning), Cal MacAninch
(Ben Oakley), Lorne MacFadyen (Chief Petty Officer Michael Doward),
Daniel Portman (Gary Walsh), Stephen Dillane (Rear Admiral Shaw)

Guest Stars: Stephen McCole (Patrick Cruden), Tom Gill (Chief Petty Officer
Adams), Lois Chimimba (CPO Tara Kierly), Bobby Rainsbury (Heather
Cronin), Cristian Ortega (Anderton), Aisha Toussaint (Cat), Orla Rus-
sell (Poppy), Therese Bradley (Laura Michaels), Parth Thakerar (Jay
Kohli), Oliver Lansley (Mark Hill), Reuben Joseph (DS Porter), Dan
Li (Hennessy), Angelique Fernandez (Scott), Jordan McCurrach (Sig-
nals Operator), Nebli Basani (Digital Operations Officer), Jack Sher-
lock (Hull Valve Engineer), Grant Fergusson (Reporter), Stefan Milne
(Ground Crew)

Summary: Running out of time, Vigil’s crew must identify the traitor among them
to avert disaster.

As the episode begins, Amy Silva strug-
gles to breathe while Prentice approaches
Doward. Prentice quickly hits the button
to stop flooding the tube and Doward pre-
tends nothing is going on. Gary Walsh
washes Doward who is worried about the
others finding out about Silva and what
he has done. Prentice orders Walsh to get
a Hazmat suit and work on the comms
wire. He will stay behind and clean up.
Despite Amy’s desperate pleas for help,

nobody hears her. Tara Kierly tells Captain Newsome about the ships following them. He knows
they’ve tried to disable Vigil and they’re hunting them. He admits they’ll have no intel on the
ships until the comms wire is fixed.

Gary Walsh works on the wire while Tiffany Docherty takes care of Elliot Glover. Silva con-
tinues struggling while stuck in the tube. Prentice returns to the captain and claims DCI Silva
is getting cleaned up. Newsome gives permission for the engineer to commence the decontami-
nation process. Prentice warns him there is no guarantee it’ll work and suggests limiting access
to the floors in question. Tiffany returns and informs Newsome that Glover is going to need spe-
cial treatment. He tells her to look at the screen and reminds her they cannot send or receive
messages. Plus, they can’t deal with a civilian evacuation so Glover is likely out of luck until
they get a handle on the tactical situation. A distraught Tiffany leaves once she hears everything
Newsome has to say.
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Doward approaches Glover with bad intentions before trying to smother him. Glover tries to
fight back and that gives him enough time to hold out until Tiffany and Prentice enter. Doward
tells them it sounded like Elliot was choking. While Tiffany works on Glover, Doward returns
to the command center. Ben Oakley approaches the Chinese consulate but stops when he sees
police officers out front. Kirsten Longacre pulls up and arrests him on suspicion of murdering
Jade. He sits down and is promptly questioned by Kirsten who wants to know about Ingles. Ben
says he’ll talk to anyone who is against nuclear weapons and Ingles claimed he wanted Russia
to denuclearize. They can’t do that until they get rid of Vigil. Ben says he only told Ingles about
a few people he might want to talk to and nothing else.

Then, Kirsten confronts him about the photo and the fact Jade is the one who took it. Ben
breaks and says he wants to be clear with her about what happened before giving her his phone’s
PIN. Porter uses the PIN to open the phone and finds the picture of Matthew Doward. Kirsten
quickly calls in the new evidence. Branning tells Shaw that the Russian operative is the sonar
operator Matthew Doward. Gary continues working on the comms wire while Silva remembers
spending time with Kirsten who says she loves her. She remembers Kirsten using morse code
on her back so she uses it to send a message to the crew. Tara hears it and immediately tells
Prentice about the banging. Prentice quickly recognizes it as morse code and wonders where it is
coming from. Prentice tries to find out where it is coming from while Doward learns about it.

Matthew becomes concerned and tries to make an excuse to leave his watch immediately. He
easily fools Hennessy who tells him to get out of there. He rushes down and causes water to flood
into the submarine. Hennessy and Newsome learn what is going on and try to do something
about it. Newsome realizes they’ve been sabotaged so everyone is ordered to their emergency
stations. Adams finds out what is going on and radios it in immediately. Shaw and the others
learn there are signs that Vigil might be in distress. Shaw listens to the audio and finds out that
several Russian ships are nearby. They also find that the USS Delaware is nearby. Shaw goes
to his room and requests assistance since it is an attack on Britain. He hopes the Russians will
crap their uniforms when the USS Delaware prepares to fire.

He says they believe they’re unopposed, so they need to change that perspective. Captain
Newsome consults with Hadlow and the others about the ship’s weight and pressure due to the
water flooding inside. Hadlow believes they have 10 minutes or less before they’ll be too heavy
to get back up. Amy remembers her argument with Kirsten who leaves her. Prentice finally finds
Amy and pulls her out. She tells Prentice that Doward is the reason Burke was killed because
they wanted to get him on the boat. The line is dead so Prentice can’t notify the others. Instead,
he is going to help Silva leave through the missile deck. Doward approaches with a knife, and he
knows Prentice hasn’t reported him because he cut the wiring. He claims they’re going to save
the boat and some of them will evacuate before walking closer.

Prentice sends Amy to get help while he fights with Doward. Amy lags around long enough
to watch Doward overpower Prentice and drive the knife into his chest. Matthew stabs her a few
more times while Amy makes a run for it. Doward begins chasing Amy before stopping to pick up
a mash. Newsome learns they’re 350 meters down. He wants to get on the hover or something
that normally only works at 150 meters. Since they have no other option, Hadlow agrees to try
it. They turn on the hovering system while Amy continues hiding from Doward. Matthew warns
her that she can’t hide here forever because the bleach will burn her lungs. Adams tries to stop
the water from flooding through before telling his partner to open the valve. Meanwhile, Walsh
continues working on the comms system. He manages to get it sorted out so Vigil can receive
messages.

Newsome receives the messages about Doward being a Russian spy. He immediately stops
what he is doing to tell everyone that Matthew Doward is a traitor. They’re ordered to find him
while Silva tries to hide from him. Silva tries to defend herself and hits Doward a few times. He
removes his mask and goes after her once again. Tara gets the door open just in time for Silva to
slip out. However, Doward jumps on her and holds the knife close to her neck. Tara tells Doward
she’ll kill him for this before he orders her to move to the control room. Adams manages to get
the water to stop flowing into the submarine. Hadlow warns Newsome that the submarine is still
dropping. Doward makes it back with Silva and says the chain of command is changing. He is
going to give orders and they’re going to follow him. He wants to surface and make contact with
one of the Russian vessels.

Newsome cooperates and tells them to go up. They pull up quickly and that causes Doward
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to trash to the ground. Doward is subdued, Newsome tells them not to surface, and Silva says
she is arresting him. Shaw learns the Russian vessels have started to disperse. He orders them
to send the information to Vigil. Ben says Jade came to him with the picture and he recognized
Ingles. Jade thought he was MI5 and wanted to make a big story out of it. He told Ingles to be
more careful about it and he agreed to arrange a meeting with Peter who wanted to see Jade.
Ben admits Peter grabbed Jade and drowned her in the water during the meeting. It was too late
to stop him. Ben says he wanted to help her and call an ambulance but didn’t. He claims Jade
wanted the photo out there and he wanted to at least do that since they would’ve covered it up.
Kirsten accuses him of selling Jade out to a Russian spy before saying he’ll go to prison for a
long time.

When Elliot wakes up, he learns from Tiffany that Doward has been arrested. Newsome ap-
proaches Prentice’s body before the bag is zipped. Silva tells Newsome how Prentice saved her.
Then, she tells him what evidence she’ll report about Burke and Doward so the crown can make
its case. They’re interrupted and learn the helicopter will be around in five minutes. Tiffany tells
Newsome she has treated Silva and the others. Despite everything, Tara and Walsh want to stay
on Vigil. Silva follows Doward who is led away in chains. Newsome acknowledges her hard work
and she tells him good luck. They leave on a plane with Elliot Glover who needs urgent medical
care.

We jump forward and see Amy in a hospital room. Later, she goes to the office and runs into
Kirsten who welcomes her home. Porter and Robertson talk to her briefly before she learns MI5
is in and they’re ready to have a crack at Doward. She wants to watch the interview although
Robertson thinks she should rest. MI5 tries to get Doward to cooperate by offering him a com-
fortable place instead of a cage where he has to use the bathroom in a bucket. He says he was
told what Jackie was going to do in exchange for getting her son out. He says a guy at the peace
camp told the Russians to approach Burke. Since Burke turns them down and could’ve told oth-
ers, they likely needed to shut him up. Laura claims Jackie set it off accidentally when Doward
threatened her after she didn’t deliver as he ordered. She opened it because she didn’t trust
Matthew and wanted to protect the crew.

He says it would’ve been a few photographs and a tour back home. Silva can’t believe the
entire thing was a PR stunt, so Kirsten explains it was an attempt to make the deterrent look
bad. Doward knows they don’t want a trial and him giving evidence. Jay warns Matthew that
he’ll be locked away and forgotten about. When he refuses to say why he worked for Russia,
Silva says he is a narcissist. She claims it made him feel special and gave him power before
deciding to leave. Silva tells Kirsten she wants to see Poppy and learns about Kirsten dropping
her off the present. Amy invites her and they agree to go together. Shaw asks what he is going to
say before being warned he likely won’t get them to approve the deterrents now. Shaw believes
they should let the navy get away with it since it’d be a win for Russia to say they got a spy onto
Vigil.

He is told they should own up to what happened starting with the five men on the trawler who
drowned. Shaw fires back by telling Patrick Cruden he held onto the photo of the Russian spy
on Vigil and never turned it over. Shaw wants to get it wrapped up today since it doesn’t benefit
anyone except Russia. Patrick agrees to keep the information hidden from the press. Patrick says
they will get nuclear weapons out of Scotland in his lifetime. Kirsten stops Amy to tell her Poppy’s
grandparents know they’re no longer together. Silva knows she owes her an explanation, so she
says she got scared. Kirsten insists she never just wanted the easy parts of Amy. Amy apologizes
for hurting her and says she didn’t know how to bring Poppy into this. She finds it hard to say
she loves her, but Kirsten does not. Amy wants to try again. However, Kirsten doesn’t want to go
back to the way things were.

Amy says she could only think about Poppy and Kirsten when she was trapped down there.
She finally tells Kirsten she loves her. Next, Shaw holds a press conference and tells everyone
about the trawler. He says it is more evidence of Russian aggression and Russian incompetence.
Elliot watches Shaw speak from his motel room. His wife is standing nearby so he turns off the
television. Porter watches Burke’s video in which he tells Jade he wants the world to be safe so
they can be in it together. Branning goes to Prentice’s house and tells them about his passing.
He talks about how beautiful the world is while Amy and Kirsten approach Poppy who is playing
nearby.
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Episode 1

Season 2
Episode Number: 7
Season Episode: 1

Originally aired: Sunday December 10, 2023
Writer: Tom Edge
Director: Andy De Emmony
Show Stars: Suranne Jones (DCI Amy Silva), Rose Leslie (DS Kirsten Longacre),

Gary Lewis (DS Colin Robertson), Romola Garai (Eliza Russell),
Dougray Scott (Marcus Grainger)

Guest Stars: Alastair Mackenzie (Anthony Chapman), Chris Jenks (Callum Barker),
Jonathan Ajayi (Wes Harper), Steven Elder (Derek McCabe), Amir
El-Masry (Daniel Ramsay), Oscar Salem (Sam Kader), Hiba Medina
(Sabiha Chapman), Craig Anthony-Kelly (Gunner Patrick), Martin Bell
(Gunner Jansen), Jack Hesketh (Gunner Simmonds), Shannon Hayes
(Nicole Lawson), Anders Hayward (Colin Dixon), Nebras Jamali (Ali Bi-
lali), Angus Yellowlees (Clothier), Tommy Sim’aan (Firas Zaman), Orla
Russell (Poppy Silva), Noof Ousellam (Paul Townsend), Jordan Young
(Compton), David Elliot (Ross Sutherland)

Summary: When a British Air Force weapons test goes disastrously wrong, DCI
Amy Silva is called in to investigate. With seven military personnel
dead, two from Britain’s allies in the Middle East, Amy finds herself
caught in the crosshairs of a fraught international incident. The Air
Force think they have the guilty party in custody and push for Amy
and DI Kirsten Longacre to close the case. But Amy isn’t convinced.

The episode begins in the fictional Mid-
dle Eastern country of Wudyan, as RAF
Wing Commander Anthony Chapman has
a heated exchange with a fellow officer,
before fleeing the country with his daugh-
ter Sabi. On his way he tells Squadron
Leader Eliza Russell wants to return
to Britain as he’s just got back from
Dubai, where he learned he has termi-
nal liver cancer, and wants Russell to
take command of the squadron. But who
was Chapman arguing with before he
departed and what were they arguing

about?
One of Russell’s first tasks will be to oversee a weapon drone exercise at the Scottish military

base of Dundair, which is under the supervision of Air Vice Marshall Marcus Grainger on the
ground in Scotland. However, it’s clear the weapons drones — or RPAS (Remotely Piloted Air
Systems) — are being operated by personnel in Scotland and Wudyan.

The attack begins on the dummy targets, yet radar soon picks up a civilian by the perimeter
fence operating a drone of his own. Grainger sends a team to investigate and the mystery man
scarpers.

When the weapons test is complete, Grainger’s Wudyani guests seem very impressed and it’s
clear they have ordered a large number of these drones for their country’s military. Yet Grainger
wants to show them another of the drones’ capabilities and tells the pilots to place them on
autopilot for the trip back to base.
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Yet rather than returning to base, Colin Dixon’s Alpha RPAS turns and opens fire on the
soldiers on the ground. Dixon tries to take back control of the drone from autopilot, but he’s
unable to disable its weapons and is locked inside his vehicle. Finally, his comrade, Lawson, is
able to use Bravo RPAS to destroy Alpha RPAS and the wave of destruction is over. Seven people
lie dead and Colin Dixon is brutally detained, but did he pull the trigger?

DCI Amy Silva is dropping her daughter Poppy off at school, when she learns of the terrible
events at Dundair. She and her girlfriend DI Kirsten Longacre — who’s totally pregnant btw —
are soon called in to look into it, after the Ministry of Defence ask for Amy personally. She did a
good job with that nuclear submarine we suppose...

At Dundair, DCI Silva goes to speak to Colin Dixon — or "the suspect" — while DI Longacre
interviews the other pilots. One of whom is Lawson, who tells them most of the soldiers in the
unit knew each other from their time in Afghanistan. Longacre also asks why Lawson moved
away from her comrades to get a better sightline, meaning she wasn’t in the line of fire when the
RPAS started shooting. But DI Longacre is clearly a bit suspicious.

Inside the base, Dixon tells DCI Silva that he wasn’t in control of the RPAS when it started
firing on his friends and the communications were cut when the drone went into autopilot.
He explains that he should have been able to take back control of the drone at any time, but
that anyone logged into the system could have done the same — apart from Lawson, who was
operating the drone that finally shot Bravo down. This leaves two others who could have taken
control of it and both of them are based in Wudyan.

In Wudyan, Russell holds a debrief into the incident when Barker, one of the RPAS pilots,
takes exception to the news that Dixon was beaten up and is furious that all the pilots from that
day are now suspects.

Russell says he and Captain Sattam Abdul Kade will need to write statements in separate
rooms, so they can’t be accused of collusion. Kade asks for the names of the Wudyanis who were
killed in Scotland, it seems some of them may have been his friends.

Meanwhile at Dundair we hear the Wudyani ruler is furious to hear of the incident and has
a mind to cut their funding to the RPAS programme. It seems Wudyan is furious about the
hypocrisy of British politicians who criticise the Arab country and brand its leader a war criminal,
yet gladly accept its money.

Elsewhere, DCI Silva is interested to hear why the demonstration ended early and questions
why no one told her about the civilian who was seen flying a drone near Dundair just before the
incident. It’s a question she’s keen to ask Grainger, but he’s busy dealing with the wreckage of
the RPAS, although he doesn’t seem as keen to retrieve the data as his colleague, Derek McCabe.

McCabe is currently analysing data from the control unit just outside Glasgow and DCI Silva
is keen to see it, however soon after the down RPAS explodes, which means all the data on board
is lost. Could Grainger have been trying to cover something up by allowing this to happen?

Either way, he’s very keen to pin the blame on Dixon, says he doesn’t believe the pilots
in Wudyan are responsible and that the system must have been hacked. McCabe says that’s
impossible, which would mean it’s one of the four pilots, right?

DCI Silva joins Grainger as he speaks to his team in Wudyan, but before the call starts he
has time to fill her in on the details of the conflict in the country, where the state is supporting a
neighbouring government against insurgents. The UK military is providing non-combat support,
something the British media have been highly critical of. Nevertheless, he says Wudyan is one of
the UK military’s most important partnerships and two of their nationals died at Dundair.

During the call, Wes Harper, who’s technical lead on the RPAS programme, comes in with
important news. He tells DCI Silva all the controllers have been accounted for "two in Scotland
and three here," he says. But hang on a minute, we thought there were only four controllers?

Never mind, because Harper says Wing Commander Antony Chapman was the next person
to take control of Alpha RPAS after Dixon and flew it until it was shot down by Lawson, who
got back on the system 30 seconds after him. How did he do that? Did he smuggle one out of
Wudyan and if so how did he manage it?

"Where’s Anthony Chapman now?" asks DCI Silva and while Grainger confirms he’s in the
UK, he says he’s very ill and probably not in any condition to fly a drone. We shall see. After
the call Russell says Harper was unwise to share that information so brazenly and asks for his
statement on the incident. He tells her to shove her statement.
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Later on Russell tells Barker to resubmit his report of the incident, saying his opinion on past
operations is not relevant. She also asks about a "heated exchange" Chapman had with someone
before he left Wudyan, but Barker says he knows nothing about it.

Yet what are these past operations Barker is referring to? Grainger and McCabe have been
presenting the RPAS as wonderful new weapons, but maybe their journey to the battlefield hasn’t
been as smooth as they claim!

Meanwhile, DCI Silva confirms that while Chapman had an operation booked for that after-
noon, he didn’t turn up for it. She goes to his hotel, but finds his room empty, before questioning
Grainger about Chapman and saying it looks like his cancer story was a ruse. It’s clear Grainger
has known Chapman for many years and reveals that Chapman’s wife was Wudyani and died
when his daughter Sabi was young.

But how did she die? Could Chapman be trying to settle an old score against a regime that
had his wife killed?

Grainger also gives a brief rundown of the Wudyani-funded RPAS programme, which it seems
is a key priority for the British government, before explaining that there have been questions
over Chapman’s loyalty in the past. Grainger also says information has been passed to a UK
journalist named Firas Zaman. But if Chapman was suspected of being leaky, why did Grainger
trust him so implicitly?

At the perimeter fence, DI Longacre goes hunting for the trespasser and soon finds him climb-
ing a tree. He does get the chance to reset his phone before coming down, but what information
is he trying to hide?

His name is Firas Zaman and when DI Longacre begins questioning him about why he was
filming a weapons test, it’s clear he’s a British resident who’s from Wudyan. Meanwhile officers
who raided his house find a load of prescriptions, authorised by Dr Mohammed Rajab, in a town
not far from the Wudyani air base.

One of them is for IVF, which is odd to say the least and DI Longacre believes they’re some
sort of code. She tells him she suspects he is involved in an act of terrorism and will be detained,
but he claims he’s "on the side of the angels".

But the pair are soon joined by MI5 agent Daniel Ramsay who says Dr Rajab is in prison on
terrorism charges. Ramsay also explains that after looking at the report, it seems the plan of
whoever took control of the rogue RPAS would need someone on the ground to tell them when
the autopilot was engaged, which we’re guessing is Zaman. That’s probably why Zaman wiped
his phone.

When Ramsay leaves, Zaman says the drones being developed will one day be used by the
Wudyani authorities on its citizens. He warms that big oil is coming and these RPAS are how
the regime will cling to power "those drones are tools for oppression" he says, before revealing
someone who he won’t name told him about the test.

DCI Silva wants to interview Lawson, but is told by Grainger that she’s been flown back to
Wudyan. When we combine this information with DI Longacre’s suspicions over Lawson moving
away from her comrades just before they were killed, she starts to look pretty dodgy.

Meanwhile her colleague at the operation centre retrieves the data, which shows where the
RPAS were operated from. There were two in Wudyan, two in Dundair, and one in a little village
an hour from Glasgow. There’s that fifth controller — and we bet we know who was operating it!

DCI Silva heads out to the Trossachs to see what’s going on and she takes DI Longacre with
her. When they get there the SWAT team finds Chapman dead in the woods near the house, but
his daughter is nowhere to be seen. As they return to the Jeep, DI Longacre hears and sound
and walks off into the woods, where they find Sabi — only for a mysterious assailant to open fire
on them as they flee into the forest!
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Episode 2

Season 2
Episode Number: 8
Season Episode: 2

Originally aired: Monday December 11, 2023
Writer: Tom Edge
Director: Andy De Emmony
Show Stars: Suranne Jones (DCI Amy Silva), Rose Leslie (DS Kirsten Longacre),

Gary Lewis (DS Colin Robertson), Romola Garai (Eliza Russell),
Dougray Scott (Marcus Grainger)

Guest Stars: Chris Jenks (Callum Barker), Amir El-Masry (Daniel Ramsay),
Jonathan Ajayi (Wes Harper), David Elliot (Ross Sutherland), Oscar
Salem (Sam Kader), Hiba Medina (Sabiha Chapman), Jordan Young
(Compton), Noof Ousellam (Paul Townsend), Tania Rodrigues (Emma
Millington), Dominic Mafham (Sir Ian Downing), Orla Russell (Poppy
Silva), Shannon Hayes (Nicole Lawson), Nowras Tharb (Wudyani Air-
port Officer), Nebras Jamali (Ali Bilali), Naomi Stirrat (Arlene Royce)

Summary: Amy and Kirsten are battling for their lives against a ruthless armed
killer. They manage to escape. Following new evidence, the case takes a
turn. Amy must go to the Air Force base in the Middle East. There, she
learns someone on the base was complicit in the attack. Meanwhile,
in Scotland, Kirsten hunts down Chapman’s killer, determined not to
let her pregnancy get in the way of her mission.

After the death of Wing Commander An-
thony Chapman at the end of the first
episode, DCI Amy Silva heads to Wudyan
to continue her investigation.

Meanwhile, back in Scotland, her
partner DI Kirsten Longacre joins forces
with MI5 agent Daniel Ramsay in a bid to
discover the identity of the gunman in the
woods...

We pick the story up just where we
left it, with DCI Silva, DI Longacre and
Sabiha fleeing through the woods from a
mysterious gunman. He wants to know

where "she" is, but before he gets an answer, an armed police officer comes to the rescue. Yet the
gunman manages to flee by jumping from a cliff into a nearby lake.

Thanks to DCI Silva’s nifty work with a rock they do have a sample of his blood though and
the police also recover a phone from the house, which they believe could be Chapman’s. But
we’re now wondering if Chapman wasn’t the only target and his daughter Sabiha was also on the
hitman’s list?

At the hospital, DCI Silva begins questioning Sabiha in a bid to find the man who killed her
father. Unfortunately she didn’t see him and in her terror, ran off to hide after her father was
killed.

Sabiha says she has no idea why she and her father came home in such a rush or anything
at all about what he’s been up to. DCI Silva seems to believe she’s not telling her the whole story,
but either way she’s certainly keen to protect her father’s reputation.

When she’s shown console the authorities suspect Chapman used to take control of Al-
pha RPAS during the disastrous demonstration, she becomes irritated, demanding to return
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to Wudyan to be with her mum’s family. Amy doesn’t want her to go, yet doesn’t think she can
stop her. But what does she know and what is she hiding?

However there’s another bombshell on the horizon, because it seems new data indicates that
while Chapman seemed to have taken control of Alpha RPAS during the attack at Dundair, it was
actually being controlled from Wudyan. The GPS data was changed, but by who and why? And
if Chapman is innocent, what was he doing in the Trossachs? And why did he lie about having
cancer? So many questions, but they’re probably all connected.

DCI Silva wants to head out to the air base in Wudyan to continue her investigation, but Air
Marshall Marcus Grainger is being very obstructive and explains that it could sour the UK’s re-
lations with the Middle Eastern country. When DCI Silva threatens to arrest the whole squadron
things get heated, but it’s clear Grainger isn’t a big fan of DCI Silva snooping around in his
affairs.

But there’s more, because the MI5 operative in the meeting then reveals that Dr Rajab —
who’s in prison in Wudyan on terrorism charges — has disclosed the existence of a plot to
disrupt UK/Wudyani relations, which involves our old friend Firas Zaman.

The net result is that DCI Silva is off to Wudyan. It’s distressing news for her daughter Poppy,
who knows that gay people are often thrown in prison in the Middle Eastern country.

On the flight to Wudyan, DCI Silva tries to get more information out of Sabir. She’s once again
rebuffed. They’re quizzed by security at the airport, but Acting Squadron Leader Eliza Russell
soon turns up to take them to the base, saving them an uncomfortable delay. "The regime loves
to remind us who’s in charge," says Sabiha. We’re starting to think the young woman is more
into Wudyani politics than she’s letting on.

When they arrive at the air base, they are greeted by Colonel Bilali who witnessed the carnage
at Dundair first-hand. He’s keen to discuss the situation with DCI Silva as soon as possible.

Meanwhile Russell takes her to one side to suggest that Sabiha should probably be sent back
to the UK, for her own good. But does Russell have her own motives for wanting her out of
Wudyan? What does she know about Chapman’s daughter?

Either way, Russell is shocked to find that Silva wants to speak to the RPAS pilots, Barker
and Kade, and that Chapman wasn’t the man behind the attack at Dundair. She’s then told the
rogue drone was controlled from the very air base they’re sat in. If she did know that already
then she hid it well.

Russell is happy to let Silva talk to Barker, but things could be more complicated with Kade,
as he’s a Wudyani national, yet Silva is in no mood to wait around and heads off to doorstep him.

Furthermore, it seems Russell isn’t being entirely honest with DCI Silva and there’s actually
an operation going on against the Wudyani dissidents that Russell neglected to mention. She
graciously allows Silva to stay and observe.

Two targets escape the compound Russell’s team had been ordered to secure and Colonel
Bilali tells her to rectify her error by taking them out immediately. However she refuses and the
combatants escape, with Russell clearly laying the blame at Barker’s door.

Sensing he might be in the mood to talk, Silva follows him to find out what he knows. He’s a
bit more open than the other people she’s met and suggests the rogue RPAS was being operated
by someone who hadn’t had much training with the weapons.

After leaving he bumps into Sabir — or ’Sabs’ — and they seem relatively familiar with each
other. She’s desperate for answers about her father and she seems to think Barker can help her,
asking "Was any of what you told me true?" She doesn’t get an answer, but we’re very keen to
know what he told her.

Later on, the RPAS programme’s technical lead, Wes Harper, takes her around the Alban X
armoury, where she asks to see the spare RPAS console, which she suspects was used in the
attack at Dundair. But it’s not there and Harper hasn’t seen it for a week at least. So where is it
and who took it?

A quick look at the CCTV shows that Chapman erased 13 minutes of footage when the console
went missing — but crucially it couldn’t have been him that stole the kit. So who did? The news
that someone on the base is working with the dissident group comes as a shock to Russell. If it’s
not Sabiha, then we think she knows who it is.

When Silva meets Colonel Bilali, he seems convinced the dissident group is behind the attack
in Dundair, but she’s more interested in the information that led to the raid of Dr Rajab’s address
earlier that day.
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He’s in a bad way when DCI Silva finally meets him and it’s clear he’s been tortured, despite
Colonel Bilali’s denials. However when he leaves the room, Rajab asks for a pen and writes a note
that Silva quickly stashes, it looks very much like he’s trying tell her something about Bilali, but
what?

Back at Police Scotland, MI5 bod Daniel Ramsay arrives to be DI Longacre’s new partner and
he’s already proving useful, after decoding Firas Zaman’s prescriptions (he’s the ’bird-watcher’
from episode one). It seems someone on the Wudyani air base has been secretly providing a
terrorist group with the dates of weapons tests.

Meanwhile the police have found the stolen van used by the shooter, which belongs to cleaner
Arlene Royce. The rifle was taken from the Lochdoon Estate, which funnily enough is where
Arlene works, and seems to have been nicked by her old flame, Ross Sutherland, who’s ex-
military and left Lochdoon after having a row with someone.

When they get to his old flat, they find he’s got a stash of information and photos of Chapman
and his daughter, which makes DI Longacre think that she was also a target of the shooter. Or
maybe the only target? Longacre also realises it was her phone the police found at the cottage.

When DI Longacre tells DCI Silva what she’s discovered, they wonder if Sabir took the console
using her father’s military pass and Chapman deleted the footage? Yet when she puts the phone
down it’s clear the flat’s not deserted and with Ramsay gone, she’s alone with Sutherland.

He leaves her unharmed, but not before she tells him that whoever hired him to kill Chapman
was using him. "It’s not my job to kill you," he says, but who was he supposed to kill? Sabir?
Back at the air base, as Barker plays basketball, Sabiha attacks him with a knife.
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Episode 3

Season 2
Episode Number: 9
Season Episode: 3

Originally aired: Tuesday December 12, 2023
Writer: James Smythe
Director: Joss Agnew
Show Stars: Suranne Jones (DCI Amy Silva), Rose Leslie (DS Kirsten Longacre),

Gary Lewis (DS Colin Robertson), Romola Garai (Eliza Russell),
Dougray Scott (Marcus Grainger)

Guest Stars: Chris Jenks (Callum Barker), Amir El-Masry (Daniel Ramsay),
Jonathan Ajayi (Wes Harper), David Elliot (Ross Sutherland), Oscar
Salem (Sam Kader), Hiba Medina (Sabiha Chapman), Noof Ousellam
(Paul Townsend), Nebras Jamali (Ali Bilali), Shannon Hayes (Nicole
Lawson), Malek Alkoni (Faisal Ghazali), Ben Allen (Airman Field), Jor-
dan Young (Compton), Armin Karima (Nader Waheed), Keira Lucchesi
(Laura), Khalid Laith (Abdullah Ghazali), Kamal Mustaffai (Mutaz)

Summary: Following the stabbing of an officer on the base, Eliza warns Amy to
get control of her investigation. Amy must find the traitor in the ranks
of the Air Force. Kirsten, now working with MI5 partner Ramsay, un-
covers key evidence linking a squadron member to the attack. With
the force running out of leads on Chapman’s killer, Kirsten follows a
hunch. Amy takes a grave risk that puts her in jeopardy.

DCI Silva dashes over to Sabiha following
her attack on Barker and begs her to put
down the knife, before soldiers arrive to
restrain her. "He did this. He made me
do it!" she says. Sabiha clearly blames
Barker for her father’s death, but why?
And what did Barker make her do?

Russell tells DCI Silva that Barker
could be seriously injured and may never
pilot again, before urging her to get con-
trol of her investigation and speak to
Sabiha. DCI Silva seems to think it was
Sabiha that stole the RPAS console and

asks if Barker made her do it.
Soon after, DI Longacre calls her with news that Sabiha has been messaging someone who’s

not in her contacts. The timings seem to line up with the period the console went missing, but
was Callum Barker pressuring Sabiha to steal the console? DI Longacre asks Ramsay to do some
digging on the flight lieutenant.

Meanwhile, DCI Silva confronts Sabiha with footage of her leaving the air base with a bag,
which looks increasingly like it contained the console. Sabiha says she doesn’t know who picked
the bag up after she left, but DCI Silva is getting increasingly frustrated by her intransigence.

Sabiha claims Barker wanted to help the people of Wudyan and needed her to get the console
because he didn’t have the clearance, while her father did. It seems that when Chapman fled
the country with his daughter after finding out what happened and how his daughter had been
used, but not before he had a blazing row with Barker. Did he know the flight lieutenant had
been coercing Sabiha?
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It seems Chapman was killed by the dissident group after he found out about the plan and we
believe Sabiha when she says she had no idea her actions would lead to her father’s death. She
came back to Wudyan to confront Barker, who claims to know nothing about the whole thing.

Later on DCI Silva searches Barker’s room and finds a very well-hidden phone, before running
a web search on the message Dr Rajab managed to scrawl for her. It turns out he wrote ’Al
Bidbiyat’, which refers to an air strike on the Wudyani border that killed several children, thanks
to an "intelligence error".

When DCI Silva confronts Barker, it’s clear he’s disturbed by how much she knows and that
she’s found his secret mobile phone. She then asks if his squadron were involved in the airstrike
on the children’s football team. Was that atrocity what made Barker betray the air force to the
dissident group?

DCI Silva then calls DI Longacre to share the update and finds her having a scan in hospital,
which is a lovely little moment in the middle of all the conspiracy. However she’s furious to hear
about her pregnant partner’s run-in with Sutherland.

When she gets back to work, DI Longacre discovers Sutherland left the army in disgrace after
shooting a friend rather than let him be tortured by the enemy. Later on he ambushes her and
is furious to learn that Chapman was framed and he was being used. But he won’t tell her who
gave him the orders to kill Chapman. Was it someone in Wudyan or the British government?
Sutherland says he hoped killing Chapman would "make things better", but is he referring to his
discharge from the services? Or are there other secrets in his past?

Back at the Al-Shawka, DCI Silva visits RPAS technical lead Wes Harper, who tells him the
console could have been operated anywhere within 20 miles of the air base. Could they have
been Bahratwud, where the air force completed their recent operation?

Colonel Al-Bilali says they searched the area and found nothing, but DCI Silva fancies a
gander herself. He also advises that Sabiha is going to be handed over to the Wudyani police for
what she did to Barker, which is bad news for Silva — and probably Sabiha herself. The look
Russell gives DCI Silva says this could have been avoided if Sabiha had been sent back to the
UK, as she suggested.

The next thing on DCI Silva’s to-do-list is a trip to Bahratwud with Lawson to search for
that console, yet a quick scroll through the car’s GPS system reveals a mysterious address that
Barker might have traveled to.

Meanwhile, DCI Silva goes snooping round before receiving clearance from the Wudyanis —
such a maverick! — and finds a young man, who tries to escape, but not before she gets hold of
his bag. She then discovers a map hidden in the back of the TV, before persuading Lawson to
take her to that address in the GPS.

When she gets there it’s clear that Captain Kade has been visiting, although when she men-
tions Barker’s name he tells her to leave.

Later on, DCI Silva finally gets some answers when she learns that Kade and Barker are in a
relationship, which they’ve been covering up due to Wudyan’s laws on homosexuality. Barker de-
nies he had anything to do with the missing console and explains that he argued with Chapman
because he’d found out about their relationship and was urging them to end it.

Later DCI Silva talks to Sabiha and reveals that it wasn’t Barker who’d been messaging her.
But who else on the could have known enough to impersonate him?

When Grainger arrives in Wudyan, DCI Silva explains how Sabiha has been groomed by a
mysterious figure and urges him to pull some strings to get her out of the country, saying she’s
the best lead they have on the attack at Dundair.

Yet there’s a new operation underway and it seems Abdul Ghazali, father of Faisal Ghazali,
the young who DCI Silva bumped into at Bahratwud, is a target. It seems the files she recovered
have been key to identifying him as a member of the dissident group. DCI Silva isn’t sure how she
feels about this, especially when she learns that because this operation is outside the borders
of Wudyan,the RPAS programme is free to be used in the strike — which makes DCI Silva very
suspicious that British drones were involved in the strike at Al Bidbiyat.

However just as the strike seems imminent it seems someone warns the target what’s going
on and they flee. But who is passing this information from within the mission control centre to
the dissident group?

It seems Grainger has been successful in getting Sabiha out of the country, but after chatting
to Russell, DCI Silva works out that Captain Kade told Sabiha to steal the console, on the orders
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of Abdul Ghazali, whom he knows from his studies at the University.
After leaving the base, Kade leads them to the dissident base — but it’s not long before they’re

spotted and apprehended — leading us to suspect that Kade could well be the man who’s been
passing them info from inside Al-Shawka.
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Episode 4

Season 2
Episode Number: 10
Season Episode: 4

Originally aired: Sunday December 17, 2023
Writer: Maryam Hamidi
Director: Andy De Emmony
Show Stars: Suranne Jones (DCI Amy Silva), Rose Leslie (DS Kirsten Longacre),

Gary Lewis (DS Colin Robertson), Romola Garai (Eliza Russell),
Dougray Scott (Marcus Grainger)

Guest Stars: Orla Russell (Poppy), Chris Jenks (Callum Barker), Nebras Jamali (Ali
Bilali), Shannon Hayes (Nicole Lawson), Amir El-Masry (Daniel Ram-
say), Jonathan Ajayi (Wes Harper), Oscar Salem (Sam Kader), Khalid
Laith (Abdulah Ghazali), Kamal Mustaffai (Mutaz), Tommy Sim’aan (Fi-
ras Zaman), Angus Yellowlees (Clothier), Malek Alkoni (Faisal Ghazali),
Rebecca Banatvala (Alia Ghazali), Inaam Al Battat (Hafsa)

Summary: Amy and Eliza are held hostage by the dissidents at the heart of the
investigation, who demand their help to infiltrate the base. Kirsten will
do anything to find Amy.

After being taken hostage by Jabat Al-
Huria, DCI Silva and Eliza Russell come
to understand a little more about the dis-
sident group and are pressured to help
Captain Kader break into Al-Shawka air
base. Yet they eventually escape, trigger-
ing a nail-biting chase that is one of the
stand-out moments of the series so far.

After following Captain Kader to Ja-
bat Al-Huria HQ, DCI Silva and Squadron
Leader Eliza Russell have been taken
hostage, and there’s not much chance of
anyone tracing Kader’s car after he burns

it out. This makes us feel quite sceptical of his relationship with Barker — or is he a double-
agent? Time will tell.

The hostages are soon brought before Abdullah Ghazali and DCI Silva mentions her meet-
ing with his son, before suggesting it was Kader who tipped him off about the previous day’s
operation.

Yet while Kader is on his way back to Al-Shawka air base, Ghazali reveals how he wants
Russell to help Jabat Al-Huria infiltrate the most secure areas of the base. Using her pass, Kader
tries to access the key store in her office but still needs Russell to provide the code. When she
refuses, Ghazali has DCI Silva beaten until she finally provides it.

Yet Ghazali says Jabat Al-Huria had nothing to do with the attack at Dundair. Russell believes
him, but if the Wudyani dissidents didn’t launch the attack then who did?

Kader takes the key to the armoury, but when Air Marshall Grainger and Colonel Bilali enter
Russell’s office discussing her disappearance, he finds himself trapped in the key store.

They’re discussing how to rescue DCI Silva and Eliza Russell and when Bilali says they can’t
afford another failed mission, Grainger says he wants British Special Forces to lead the ground
mission this time. He hopes to get the two hostages back and also strike a crucial blow against
Jabat Al-Huria. "After Dundair, this is tantamount to an act of war" says Grainger of the kidnap-
ping.
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Meanwhile Captain Kader slips out of Russell’s office and feigns surprise when Barker tells
him about her abduction, but it seems Barker has noticed something not right. His fears are
confirmed when Lawson arrives and explains that Russell’s pass was used in the base just 15
minutes ago.

At the armoury, Kader finds that Russell’s pass no longer works, but manages to overpower
the soldier on duty, before gaining access to the armaments mainframe. Russell gives him the
password, but it takes two attempts and the failed try alerts Harper to what’s going on.

Yet while Kader starts to upload the data he needs, Barker walks in and pulls a gun on his
old boyfriend. He asks him if he was responsible for Dundair. "You have to believe that none of
this was us," he replies. "They’re trying to make it look like my friends are killers, they’re lying
to everyone." When the soldiers arrive, Kader begs Barker to take the data stick from his pocket
and he does so.

If Jabat Al-Huria weren’t behind the attack then could it have been part of a plot between the
UK and Wudyani governments?

Back in Scotland, DSU Robertson and Daniel Ramsay break the news to DI Longacre about
DCI Silva’s kidnapping. She’s quite frantic, but Robertson puts her on desk duty until her ma-
ternity leave kicks in — good luck with that!

At the Jabat Al-Huria HQ, Ghazali is furious to hear that Kader has been captured and knows
it was the wrong password attempt that tipped off the air force. Yet just when it seems he’s going
to kill DCI Silva, Russell springs them both free and they flee the compound, before disguising
themselves as Wudyani women. It’s a nail-biting chase and one of several tense moments in very
good episode.

Meanwhile, back in Scotland, DI Longacre and Daniel Ramsay are speaking to Firas Zaman,
in the hope that he might know where the hostages are being held. Yet while interviewing Zaman,
DI Longacre gets a call from DCI Silva, who’s managed to borrow someone’s phone and passes
on a few details of where they are, before Jabat Al-Huria arrives to recapture them.

Ramsay passes the details on to Al-Shawka, who uses the details to narrow the search for
Russell and DCI Silva down to three towns...

Yet DI Longacre isn’t finished with Zaman and she believes he will be able to point them in
the right direction. He refuses, but she uses the information Ramsay has on Zaman’s family as
leverage against him. It seems his brother has been assisting him with proxy servers for Jabat
Al-Huria and Longacre says if he doesn’t help them, then she’ll share that information with the
Wudyani Security Services.

Ramsay seems surprised his partner has used the information he gave her (despite it not
being pertinent to the case). Has she gone too far in her threats against Zaman’s family and will
it come back to haunt her?

Back at the Jabat Al-Huria HQ, as the debate rages about what’s to be done with the recap-
tured hostages, DCI Silva takes Faisal’s gun and turns it on him. She fires a gunshot that alerts
Grainger to where they are, yet in reality it was the intel that DI Longacre got from Zaman that
led the Special Forces to them.

Yet Ghazali continues to claim his organisation wasn’t behind the attack at Dundair or the
death of Chapman, while the truck and crates stolen from Al-Shawka simply contain evidence
that the British government has been complicit in the air strikes that killed innocent Wudyanis.

It’s clear DCI Silva is conflicted about what’s to be done, yet Grainger is about to launch his
operation and when the troops come in they take no prisoners. Ghazali’s son and many other
Wudyanis are killed immediately, while DI Longacre is forced to watch on DCI Silva disappears
into a cloud of bullets and smoke — but will she survive? And if they do, will they help Jabat
Al-Huria uncover the truth?
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Episode 5

Season 2
Episode Number: 11
Season Episode: 5

Originally aired: Sunday December 17, 2023
Writer: Ryan O’Sullivan, Matilda Wnek
Director: Andy De Emmony
Show Stars: Suranne Jones (DCI Amy Silva), Rose Leslie (DS Kirsten Longacre),

Gary Lewis (DS Colin Robertson), Romola Garai (Eliza Russell),
Dougray Scott (Marcus Grainger)

Guest Stars: Orla Russell (Poppy), Amir El-Masry (Daniel Ramsay), Chris Jenks
(Callum Barker), Nebras Jamali (Ali Bilali), Jonathan Ajayi (Wes
Harper), Oscar Salem (Sam Kader), David Elliot (Ross Sutherland),
Shannon Hayes (Nicole Lawson), Tommy Sim’aan (Firas Zaman),
Steven Elder (Derek McCabe), Angus Yellowlees (Clothier), Laura Miller
(News Presenter), Kim Allan (Paramedic Fraser), Kirsty Besterman
(Intelligence Officer Wright), Rosa Escoda (Saskia), Jumaan Zizzari
(Layla)

Summary: In the aftermath of a brutal rescue mission Amy is questioning every-
thing. She is convinced that what she’s believed up until now has been
a lie, but all the evidence points the other way. With Amy completely
isolated, Kirsten begs her to come home, but Amy can’t let go of her
suspicions. Despite huge pressure from above, Amy refuses to leave
Wudyan, putting herself in grave danger.

After escaping from Jabat Al-Huria, DCI
Silva feels conflicted about who are the
real villains in the Wudyani conflict and
discovers key information about the at-
tack at Dundair from Sam Kader. Yet fur-
ther digging leads her into serious dan-
ger, as we question the loyalty of Wes
Harper and Daniel Ramsay.

DCI Silva wakes up in a military am-
bulance and soon learns about the collat-
eral damage during the operation to save
her and Squadron Leader Eliza Russell. It
seems most of the residents of the com-

pound were killed, which leaves Amy feeling very uneasy.
DI Longacre is also conflicted as she watches the aftermath of the operation back in Scotland,

yet after a search of the compound the British Special Forces find the missing RPAS console,
which they presume was used to carry out the attack at Dundair. Ghazali claimed Jabat Al-
Huria had nothing to do with that event, was he lying? Or was the console planted there by the
British soldiers?

At the post-mission debrief, Air Marshall Grainger questions Eliza Russell and DCI Silva about
their time in captivity and it’s clear they have different stories to tell. Silva has severe concerns
about whether lethal force was required, while Russell apparently has none.

DCI Silva is also interested in the bomb casings Jabat Al-Huria had been gathering as evidence
against the UK military, yet it seems these have been destroyed by the Wudyanis. However, we
do learn that Abdullah Ghazali wasn’t among the dead and is "unaccounted for", while his wife
is in custody.
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Grainger is keen to send DCI Silva home, but she has more questions and asks DI Longacre
to speak to Firas Zaman again in the hope of finding out more about Jabat Al-Huria.

Meanwhile, DCI Silva goes to speak to Sam Kader, who says the RPAS console must have
been planted in the compound, although he has no idea who is setting them up. But he does
reveal that Wes Harper has been withholding a first-person recording of the attack, which he
downloaded from the armament mainframe.

DCI Silva doesn’t have much trouble guessing who he gave that recording to and when she
visits Barker they watch it together. It shows how the RPAS purposefully spared Grainger and
Colonel Bilali — but why? Whoever carried out the attack stopped the video feed, which means
that either Harper had access to that feed or piloted it himself. So was Wes and Alban-X behind
the attack?

When Amy speaks to DI Longacre they theorize that maybe the Wudyanis carried out the
attack as part of a plot against Jabat Al-Huria, which would also allow them to negotiate better
terms with Alban-X.

DCI Silva wants to stay and get to the bottom of it, while DI Longacre explains how she’s
struggling with the guilt of what she put Firas Zaman through...

Later on, DI Longacre meets Derek McCabe, Senior VP of Alban-X, at a press conference
Grainger is giving. He wants to draw a line under the whole thing by publicly naming Captain
Kader, but DSU Ferguson says the attack at Dundair remains an ongoing investigation. DI Lon-
gacre starts asking questions about Colonel Bilali and Wes Harper, but it’s clear she’s not going
to get the answers she needs.

Meanwhile, at Al-Shawka DCI Silva seeks out Harper and confronts him about the recording,
asking if McCabe knows about it. Rather than answering her questions, he tasers her!

Back in Scotland, DI Longacre and Daniel Ramsay are doing some digging on Colonel Bilali
and Wes Harper to see if any of them have been bought off by Alban-X. If either has been bribed
then it will most likely have been done with crypto, which could be tricky to trace. However DI
Longacre realises the same people who paid off Wes probably paid off Ross Sutherland — and
they might be able to find that account using his hard drive.

When she speaks to Firas Zaman, DI Longacre explains how DCI Silva believes Sam Kader is
innocent and that she needs his help proving it. He tells her of how Alban-X are sending weapons
to Wudyan to be used against civilians, which is what Kader was gathering evidence to prove.
He then explains how Mohammed Rajab instructed him to film the test at Dundair as it was
"important" a week and a half beforehand. But did the messages really come from Mohammed
Rajab?

After Harper flees the base, DCI Silva tells Squadron Leader Russell she suspects Colonel
Bilali paid him to carry out the attack. Later on DI Longacre explains how Zaman received a
message purportedly from Rajab, a week after he was arrested by Bilali.

"They wanted Zaman to be at Dundair and they wanted us to find him because he leads us to
Jabat Al-Huria," says DI Longacre.

Russell warns DCI Silva that she’s been ordered to get on a plane back to Britain and that it
will be safer to investigate Bilali from back in the UK, but Amy is determined to get some answers
before she leaves.

Meanwhile Daniel Ramsay finds the crypto record of £50,000 being paid to Ross Sutherland,
which came from the same account that transferred two far larger sums to a new account,
including a payment of £5m just minutes ago. That account was used to rent office space six
months ago and we reckon that’s probably where Harper is holed up.

DCI Silva asks Callum Barker to smuggle her out of the base and to the address DI Longacre
sent her. She finds Wes Harper destroying data that links him to the attack at Dundair, when a
hitman enters the office. DCI Silva kills him and after remembering him from the operation at
the compound, wonders if he could have planted the RPAS console.

As she and Harper flee, he explains that he didn’t carry out the attack, but was paid to make
sure the consoles didn’t transmit any video after the RPAS went to autopilot. He reckons it was
part of a Wudyani plot to get more weapons from Britain, as "the UK joins Wudyan’s war." It
seems Dundair was an excuse to go to war, but who was behind it? Wudyan or the UK?

But there’s more, because Harper says the assassin sent to kill them would have been working
with the British Intelligence services. DCI Silva calls DI Longacre and tells her not to share the
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image of him with Ramsay, but she already has. Is Ramsay part of the plot to take Britain to war
in Wudyan? He seemed like a real straight shooter!

Back at Al-Shawka, DCI Silva asks Eliza Russell for help and she says "You better be right
about this!" before they take off — but what did she ask for? It could well be the last we see of
Russell, as a few moments after take off gunshots ring out. Has Harper killed her?
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Episode 6

Season 2
Episode Number: 12
Season Episode: 6

Originally aired: Sunday December 17, 2023
Writer: Tom Edge
Director: Joss Agnew
Show Stars: Suranne Jones (DCI Amy Silva), Rose Leslie (DS Kirsten Longacre),

Gary Lewis (DS Colin Robertson), Romola Garai (Eliza Russell),
Dougray Scott (Marcus Grainger)

Guest Stars: Amir El-Masry (Daniel Ramsay), Chris Jenks (Callum Barker), Nebras
Jamali (Ali Bilali), Jonathan Ajayi (Wes Harper), Oscar Salem (Sam
Kader), David Elliot (Ross Sutherland), Hiba Medina (Sabiha Chap-
man), Tommy Sim’aan (Firas Zaman), Noof McEwan (Paul Townsend),
Steven Elder (Derek McCabe), Naomi Stirrat (Arlene Royce), Dominic
Mafham (Sir Ian Downing), Laura Miller (News Presenter), Edmund
Wiseman (Walker), Conor Boru (Co-Pilot Roy), Lee Knight (Jones), Kern
Falconer (Judge)

Summary: With one person dead, and another injured on board, as Amy flies
home, she is left scrambling for answers. Running out of options,
Kirsten agrees to meet with Sutherland, putting herself in even greater
danger. When Amy discovers the full scale of the conspiracy, she must
decide if she is prepared to risk everything to find those responsible.

The drone attack at Dundair that kicked
everything off seems like a while ago now,
but DCI Silva and DI Longacre are finally
getting somewhere in their bid to discover
who was behind it. It’s a trip that’s taken
DCI Silva to Wudyan and back again,
while her partner has faced plenty of peril
back home in Scotland — but now it’s
time for some answers...

We pick up moments after gunshots
are heard on the military plane taking
DCI Silva back to Scotland from Wudyan,
as she finds Wes Harper lying dead and

Eliza Russell seriously injured. Russell says she killed Harper after he tried to snatch her gun,
but it’s clear DCI Silva has her reservations about that story.

Back in Scotland, DI Longacre meets with Ross Sutherland hoping he’ll finally tell her who
sent him to kill Chapman. Whoever did tell him he was fighting terrorism, but it was actually
part of a plan to send more British troops into Wudyan and sell more weapons. However, he still
won’t reveal who’s been giving him orders.

By following him, she learns the man who set it all up was Alban-X boss, Derek McCabe, who
she films executing Sutherland. She flees when he spots her (leaving her phone behind in the
process) and miraculously only sustains a single bullet wound as she completes a three-point
turn in the road. Luckily for her he’s a terrible shot!

Meanwhile, DCI Silva is slowly putting the pieces together after landing back in Scotland and
realizes that Russell’s story doesn’t add up and she murdered Harper on the plane. However,
before the police can arrest her she’s intercepted by the intelligence forces. To make matters
worse, McCabe has also managed to get out of the country.
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In parliament, the situation is escalating quickly and politicians are set to vote on sending
troops into Wudyan in response to the attack on Dundair. Dark forces are blaming on Jabat
Al-Huria and while it’s pretty clear they weren’t behind it, proving that will be very tricky indeed.

Yet DCI Silva doesn’t give up easily and tracks Daniel Ramsay to a secret location, where she
finds him questioning Russell. To Silva’s surprise, Air Marshall Grainger allows her to interrogate
Russell herself and after learning of a secret iPad Anthony Chapman had from his daughter
Sabiha, she starts uncovering the truth.

It was Russell who piloted the RPAS that murdered the seven soldiers on that fateful day at
Dundair and she was paid to do it by McCabe. But why did she have to kill so many people?
"It had to look real and be something they couldn’t ignore!" she shouts, before confessing to
everything — from hiring Ross Sutherland, to sending those messages to Sabiha and killing Wes
Harper.

She says she did it all for the money, before hinting the intelligence service had a big part to
play in it all once the interview is over. It doesn’t take a genius to work out she’s still covering for
someone and with Ramsay’s help DCI Silva works out it must be Grainger. Not such a surprise
as he’s been giving us bad vibes since we first met him!

Grainger made the weapons test look like a terrorist attack in a bid to push Britain into a
conflict, but DCI Silva will need Ramsay’s help to prove it and must do it "off the books" to
ensure those files aren’t disappeared. We weren’t sure about Ramsay, but he’s certainly proving
his worth as this tale reaches a climax.

Ramsey discovers a smoking gun that shows Grainger was behind the whole plot when he
proves the he manipulated Sabiha to steal the RPAS console. The Air Marshall to give a disin-
genuous speech about the nature of defence, telling DCI Silva and Ramsay "the bigger picture
is hundreds of thousands of lives." He did it all so we could put petrol in our cars and heat our
homes apparently. Alright mate.

Grainger and Russell go to trial in closed court and receive life sentences for treason. "The
truth will come out eventually, just not when we’re alive," says Silva, anticlimactically — but
realistically. Later on she urges intelligence bosses to do what they can to get Sam Kader’s 30-
year sentence commuted. Fingers crossed on that front.

Yet the most stirring moment of this finale comes when Firas Zaman — the journalist caught
spying on the weapons test in the first episode — arrives to deliver a victim impact statement.
He lays out how the arms sales will continue to profit those in the UK while those in the Middle
East suffer, in a comment that feels more prescient than ever.
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Harper); 0204 (Wes Harper); 0205 (Wes Harper);
0206 (Wes Harper)
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0204 (Ali Bilali); 0205 (Ali Bilali); 0206 (Ali Bi-
lali)

Chris Jenks . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 6
0201 (Callum Barker); 0202 (Callum Barker); 0203

(Callum Barker); 0204 (Callum Barker); 0205
(Callum Barker); 0206 (Callum Barker)
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Reuben Joseph. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .5
0102 (Porter); 0103 (Porter); 0104 (DS Porter); 0105

(DS Porter); 0106 (DS Porter)
Bhav Joshi . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0103 (Chief Petty Officer Deerborne)

K
Armin Karima . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0203 (Nader Waheed)
Anne Kidd . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0105 (Morag Torrens)
Lee Knight . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0206 (Jones)

L
Suni La . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0103 (GP)
Robin Laing. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0105 (Miller)
Khalid Laith . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2

0203 (Abdullah Ghazali); 0204 (Abdulah Ghazali)
Xavier Lake . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0101 (Trawlerman)
Oliver Lansley . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4

0101 (Mark Hill); 0103 (Mark Hill); 0105 (Mark Hill);
0106 (Mark Hill)

Dan Li . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3
0104 (Hennessy); 0105 (Hennessy); 0106 (Hennessy)

Lisa Livingstone . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0105 (Arena Office Manager)

Keira Lucchesi . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0203 (Laura)

Gerry Lynch . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2
0104 (Peace Camper); 0105 (Peace Camper)

M
Thierry Mabonga . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0101 (Aircrew Officer)
Michael MacKenzie. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0105 (Gordon Torrens)
Alastair Mackenzie . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0201 (Anthony Chapman)
Dominic Mafham.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .2

0202 (Sir Ian Downing); 0206 (Sir Ian Downing)
Stephen McCole . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0106 (Patrick Cruden)
Jordan McCurrach. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .2

0104 (Signals Operations); 0106 (Signals Operator)
Noof McEwan.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0206 (Paul Townsend)
Hiba Medina. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .4

0201 (Sabiha Chapman); 0202 (Sabiha Chapman);
0203 (Sabiha Chapman); 0206 (Sabiha Chap-
man)

Laura Miller . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2
0205 (News Presenter); 0206 (News Presenter)

Stefan Milne . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0106 (Ground Crew)

Kamal Mustaffai. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .2
0203 (Mutaz); 0204 (Mutaz)

O
Cristian Ortega. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .6

0101 (Anderton); 0102 (Anderton); 0103 (Ander-
ton); 0104 (Anderton); 0105 (Anderton); 0106
(Anderton)

Noof Ousellam.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .3
0201 (Paul Townsend); 0202 (Paul Townsend); 0203

(Paul Townsend)

R
Bobby Rainsbury. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .6

0101 (Heather Cronin); 0102 (Heather Cronin); 0103
(Heather Cronin); 0104 (Heather Cronin); 0105
(Heather Cronin); 0106 (Heather Cronin)

Sam Redford. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1
0104 (Peter Ingles)

Tania Rodrigues. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1
0202 (Emma Millington)

Orla Russell . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 9
0101 (Poppy); 0102 (Poppy); 0103 (Poppy); 0105

(Poppy); 0106 (Poppy); 0201 (Poppy Silva); 0202
(Poppy Silva); 0204 (Poppy); 0205 (Poppy)

S
Oscar Salem.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .6

0201 (Sam Kader); 0202 (Sam Kader); 0203 (Sam
Kader); 0204 (Sam Kader); 0205 (Sam Kader);
0206 (Sam Kader)

Jack Sherlock . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0106 (Hull Valve Engineer)

Tommy Sim’aan . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4
0201 (Firas Zaman); 0204 (Firas Zaman); 0205 (Fi-

ras Zaman); 0206 (Firas Zaman)
Fode Simbo. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .2

0104 (Abiola); 0105 (Abiola)
Naomi Stirrat . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .2

0202 (Arlene Royce); 0206 (Arlene Royce)
Jim Sturgeon. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .2

0101 (Iain); 0102 (Iain)

T
Parth Thakerar . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3

0103 (Jay Kohli); 0104 (Jay Kohli); 0106 (Jay Kohli)
Nowras Tharb . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0202 (Wudyani Airport Officer)
Aisha Toussaint . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4

0101 (Cat); 0102 (Cat); 0105 (Cat); 0106 (Cat)

V
Anita Vettesse . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5

0101 (Jackie Hamilton); 0102 (Jackie Hamilton);
0103 (Jackie Hamilton); 0104 (Jackie Hamil-
ton); 0105 (Jackie Hamilton)

W
Edmund Wiseman .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0206 (Walker)
John Wolfe. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0105 (Military Police Officer)
Holly Woodhouse. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0105 (Naval Officer)

Y
Angus Yellowlees . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3

0201 (Clothier); 0204 (Clothier); 0205 (Clothier)
Jordan Young . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3

0201 (Compton); 0202 (Compton); 0203 (Compton)
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Z
Jumaan Zizzari. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0205 (Layla)
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